
ELIZABETHTOWN 
COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
7:00 PM, Monday, February 3, 2025 

1. OPENING AND CALL TO ORDER 

1.1 Opening and Call to Order 
Mayor Sylvia Campbell will call the meeting to order. 

2. PRESENTATION OF COLORS, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

2.1 Presentation of Colors, Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation 
Cadets from the Paul R. Brown Leadership Academy will present the Colors and all will join 
in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. APPOINTMENT AND OATH OF OFFICE - NEW TOWN COUNCIL MEMBER 

3.1 Appointment and Oath of Office - New Town Council Member 
Council is requested to approve the new Town Council member appointment at the Noon 
meeting. 

4. APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

4.1 Approve Consent Agenda Items 
Council is requested to approve the Consent Agenda items presented. 
Consent Agenda Documentation - 2.3.25.pdf 

5. PRESENTATIONS 

5.1 Special Presentation to Communications & Marketing Director Terri Dennison 
Council is requested to hear the presentation. 

5.2 Town Manager Update 
Council is requested to hear the updates. 

6. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

1 



6.1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) No. 18-D-3095 (NR-Contingency) - Grant 
Agreement and Funding Approval - $4,400,000.00 
Council is requested to approve the grant documents for the Cl Vulcan Air Manufacturing 
Facility project. 

CDBG Grant Agreement, Funding Approval and Signatory Form and Certification.pdf 

6.2 Authorization to Terminate EDA Award #04-79-07892 for Convenience 
Council is requested to approve the termination of the EDA Award #04-79-07892 for 
convemence. 

6.3 Audit Contract - Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
Council is requested to approve the Contract to Audit Accounts. 
6-30-2025 Audit Contract.pdf 

6.4 Design-Build Contract with Metcon, Inc. - Vulcan Air Manufacturing Facility 
Council is requested to approve the Design-Build Contract with Metcon, Inc. in the amount 
of $155,000.00 and to authorize Town Manager Dane Rideout to sign all documentation for 
this project. 
Design Build Contract with Metcon - 2.3.25.pdf 

6.5 Roster of Certified Firefighters and Relief Fund Board of Trustees 
Council is requested to approve the Certified Firefighters' Roster and Relief Fund Board of 
Trustees. 
Certified Firefighters' Roster - 2.3 .2025 .pdf 
NCGS - Certification of Firefighters - 2.3.2025.pdf 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 

7.1 "Briefly" (Reminders and announcements are made at this time) 
Town Manager Dane Rideout may be called upon to present this agenda item. 
Peak Agenda - Briefly - 2.3.2025.docx 
Department Head Update Report - 2.3.2025.pdf 

8. OPEN FORUM 

8.1 Open Forum 
Council is requested to listen to any public concerns or comments received. 
Sign-In Sheet - Open Forum - February 3, 2025 Regular Meeting.docx 

9. CLOSED SESSION 

9.1 Closed Session - To Be Conducted at the Noon Meeting 
Mayor Sylvia Campbell will entertain a motion and a second to enter into Closed Session in 
accordance with NCGS 143-318.ll(a)(3) - Attorney-Client Privilege. 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

2 



10.1 Adjournment 
Mayor Sylvia Campbell will entertain a motion and a second to adjourn. 

3 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.1 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

OPENING AND CALL TO ORDER 

Opening and Call to Order 

Mayor Sylvia Campbell will call the meeting to order. 

4 



II AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.1 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

PRESENTATION OF COLORS, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND 
INVOCATION 

Presentation of Colors, Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation 

The presentation of Colors will be made by Cadets from the Paul R. 
Brown Leadership Academy. All will join in to recite the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

The Invocation will then be given. 

Cadets from the Paul R. Brown Leadership Academy will present the 
Colors and all will join in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

5 



II AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.1 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

APPOINTMENT AND OATH OF OFFICE - NEW TOWN 
COUNCIL MEMBER 

Appointment and Oath of Office - New Town Council Member 

At the Noon meeting, Town Council will vote on the new Town 
Council member appointment. At the 7 p.m. meeting, the new Town 
Council member will be sworn in by Bladen County Clerk of 
Superior Court Cristin Hursey. 

Council is requested to approve the new Town Council member 
appointment at the Noon meeting. 

6 



II AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

Approve Consent Agenda Items 

A Consent Agenda includes several items for approval by the Board 
in a single motion. Documentation concerning these items are 
provided in the attached agenda material. Upon request from any one 
Board member, any item listed under the Consent Agenda shall be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately. After 
any items have been removed and the Consent Agenda is set, the 
Mayor will state the items on the Consent Agenda and moves to 
adopt it. 

Consent Agenda Documentation provided. 

Council is requested to approve the Consent Agenda items presented. 

Consent Agenda Documentation - 2.3.25.pdf 

7 



February 3, 2025 Town Council Meeting 
Consent Agenda Items 

A. Proposed Agenda -Agenda considered proposed until approved by the Board 
ACTION RECOMMENDED: Approval 

B. January 6, 2025 Noon Meeting Minutes 
ACTION RECOMMENDED: Approval 

C. January 6, 2025 7 p.m. Meeting Minutes 
ACTION RECOMMENDED: Approval 

D. January 6, 2025 Closed Session Minutes - Noon 

ACTION RECOMMENDED: Approval 
(To Be Provided at /he Evening Meeting) 

E. Monthly Financial Report 
ACTION RECOMMENDED: Approval 

F. Unpaid Tax Report for Years 2014-2024 -

Liens on Real Property 

ACTION RECOMMENDED: Approval 

ATTACH.#B 

ATTACH.#C 

ATTACH.#D 

ATTACH. #E 

ATTACH.#F 

8 



TOWN OF ELIZABETHTOWN 

January 6, 2025 Regular Meeting 

Noon Meeting 

UNOFFICIAL 

The Elizabethtown Town Council met on Monday, January 6, 2025 at 12 o'clock Noon in the Council 

Chambers. Those present were Mayor Sylvia Campbell, Mayor Pro Tern Rufus Lloyd, Council Members 
Rich Glenn, Paula Greene, Ricky Leinwand and Herman Lewis. Also present were Town Manager Dane 

Rideout and Town Attorney Goldston Womble. Department Heads in attendance included Assistant Town 

Manager Pat De Vane, Planning Director Rusty Worley, Finance Director Sharon Penny, Public 
Works/Engineering Services Director Steve Duffy, Director of Communications and Marketing Terri 

Dennison, Police Chief Mark McMichael, Fire Chief Hollis Freeman and Town Clerk Juanita Hester. 

There were no representatives from the Press. Mr. Byron Scott was in attendance to present the FY 
6/30/2024 Audit. Ms. Brenda Clark and Mrs. Nancy Willis were also in attendance. 

Item # 1. 1 Opening and Call to Order 
Mayor Sylvia Campbell opened the meeting and called to order. 

Mayor then called upon Mayor Pro Tern Rufus Lloyd to give the invocation. 

At this time, Mayor Sylvia Campbell presented a $200.00 check to Ms. Crissie Cox with Families First. 
Proceeds were received from the 2024 Christmas Tree Grove fundraiser. 

Item #2 .1 Presentation of Colors. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation 
The presentation of Colors will be made by the Paul R. Brown Leadership Academy Cadets at the evening 

meeting. 

Item #3.1 Approve Consent Agenda Items 

Action on this agenda item will be taken at the 7 p.m. meeting. 

Item #4.1 Public Hearing - 2020 Elizabethtown CDBG-NR Program Close-out 

Town Manager Dane Rideout briefed on the purpose of the Public Hearing. The Public Hearing will be 

conducted at the 7 p.m. meeting. 

Item #5.1 Audit Presentation for FY Ending 6/30/2024 - Noon Meeting 
Mr. Bryon Scott with Thompson, Price, Scott & Adams presented the Fiscal Year ending 6/30/24 Audit 

Report. The Town received an exceptionally good Audit. Mr. Scott answered several questions received 
from Council members. 

Item #5.2 Town Manager Update 
Both Town Manager Dane Rideout and Planning Director Rusty Worley gave project updates. 

Item #5.3 Christmas Tree Grove Contribution Presentation 
Presentation of a $200.00 check was made at the beginning of the meeting to Ms. Crissie Cox with 

Families First. 

Item #6.1 Acceptance/ Approval of the Audit Report for Fiscal Year ending 6/30/2024 

ATIACH.#8 

9 



Action on this agenda item will be taken at the 7 p.m. meeiing. 

Item #6.2 Water and Sewer Bid for Corporate Airpark 
Mayor Campbell called upon Planning Director Rusty Worley to brief Council. Action on this agenda 
item will be taken at the 7 p.m. meeting. 

Item #6.3 Appointment: Relief Fund Board of Trustees Appointed by Local Government 
Fire Chief Hollis Freeman noted that both Mr. Wayne Edge and Mr. Larry Richards had expressed an 
interest in serving another term. Action will be taken at the 7 p .m. meeting. 

Item #6.4 Appointment: Elizabethtown Recreation Commission 
Action on this agenda item will be taken at the 7 p.m. meeting. 

Item #7.1 "Briefly" (Reminders and announcements are made at this time) 
Town Manager Dane Rideout outlined upcoming event dates and the MLK holiday closing for the Town. 

Item #8.1 Open Forum 
Any concerns from citizens will be taken by Town Council at the 7 p.m. meeting. 

Item #9 .1 Closed Session - To Be Conducted at Noon Meeting 
A motion was made by Council Member Paula Greene, seconded by Council Member Rich Glenn, to 
enter into Closed Session in accordance with NCGS 143-318.ll(a)(3)-Attorney-Client Privilege and 
NCGS 143-318.ll(a)(6)-Personnel (Unanimous). 

RETURN FROM CLOSED SESSION TO OPEN SESSION: 
A motion was made by Council Member Rich Glenn, and seconded by Council Member Paula Greene, to 
return from Closed Session to Open Session (Unanimous). 

Action will need to be taken at the next regular scheduled Town Council meeting for appointment of a 
new Town Council member. 

With no further business to conduct, Council Member Herman Lewis, seconded by Council Member Rich 
Glenn, made a motion to adjourn the meeting (Unanimous). 

Sylvia Campbell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Juanita Hester, Town Clerk 

10 



TOWN OF ELIZABETHTOWN 
Evening Meeting 
January 6, 2025 

UNOFFICIAL 

The Elizabethtown Town Council met for its regular meeting on Monday, January 6, 2025, in the 
Council Chamber at 7:00 pm. Those present were Mayor Sylvia Campbell, Council Members 

Ricky Leinwand, Paula Greene, Rich Glenn, Herman Lewis, Town Manager Dane Rideout and 
Town Attorney Goldston Womble. Department Heads in attendance included Assistant Town 
Manager Pat De Vane, Town Planner Rusty Worley, Finance Director Sharon Penny, Director of 

Communications and Marketing Terri Dennison, Fire Chief Hollis Freeman, Police Chief Mark 
McMichael, Public Works Engineering Director Stephen Duffy and Town Clerk Juanita Hester. 

Absent: Mayor Pro Tern Rufus Lloyd. No members from the Press attended the meeting. 
Ms. Brenda Clark was in attendance. 

Item # 1. 1 : Opening and Call to Order 
Mayor Sylvia Campbell opened the meeting and called to order. She welcomed everyone. 

Item # 2.1: Presentation of Colors, Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation 

Presentation of Colors and the Pledge of Allegiance were given by Paul R. Brown Leadership 
Academy Cadets. Mayor Sylvia Campbell then gave the invocation. 

Item #3 .1: Approve Consent Agenda Items 

Upon a motion by Council Member Rich Glenn, seconded by Council Member Herman Lewis, 
the Board unanimously approved the following Consent Items as presented. A. Proposed 

Agenda, B. December 2, 2024 Noon Meeting Minutes, C. December 2, 2024 7 p.m. Meeting 
Minutes, D. December 2, 2024 Closed Session - Noon, E. Monthly Financial Report, F. Budget 

Amendment #2025-02, G. Tax Releases. 

Item #4.1: Public Hearing: 2020 Elizabethtown CDBG-NR Program Close-out 

Mayor Campbell opened the public hearing and called upon Mrs. Tammy Jones Daniels, with 
The Adams Company to present. Mrs. Daniels noted that the Town was originally funded 

$750,000.00. The original project included $415,000 to rehabilitate 3 homes, $260,000 to 
renovate a park, and $75,000 for grant administration. Amendment #1 was requested and 

approved by the Department of Commerce to increase the total project budget to $950,000, add 1 
new home, and change the park renovation to pedestrian improvements. The final project 

included $511,446.90 rehabilitation to reconstruct 2 homes and rehabilitate 1, $333,623.65 

ATTACH.#C 

11 



pedestrian improvements to install sidewalk and street lighting along W. Dunham Street from 
Martin Luther King Drive to Highway 701, $93,695.18 Administration, total grant funds 
expended $938,765.73, deobligated $11,234.27 and LMI of completed project 82.20%. Ms. 
Brenda Clark signed up to speak. With her question about the $4 million grant request at the 
12/2/24 Town Council meeting, Town Manager Dane Rideout responded. Mayor Campbell then 
closed the public hearing. 

Item #5 .1: Audit Presentation for FY Ending 6/30/2024. 
This agenda item was presented at the Noon meeting. 

Item #5 .2: Town Manager Update 

• Town Planner Rusty Worley noted that the Community Center building color is approved 
and ordered. 

• Assistant Town Manager Pat De Vane noted that there was a Safe Street tour. 
• There were 2 public meetings: December 12, 2024 at Town Hall and December 14, 2024 

at Paul R. Brown Leadership Academy to identify transportation safety concerns and seek 
input from members of New Town. 

• There will be a report in March. 

• Town Manager Dane Rideout noted that he appreciates the support of the New Town 
Community. This is a great investment for the New Town Community. 

Item #5 .3: Christmas Tree Grove Contribution Presentation 
Director of Comm,mications and Marketing Terri Dennison noted that 9 Christmas trees were 
decorated by local b,1sinesses and organizations as part of the Christmas Tree Grove at the 
Farmers Market as a fundraiser for a local charity. The "Old Fashion Christmas Tree" decorated 
by Mrs. Betty Tatl;\m won the popularity vote. This year $200.00 was raised for Families First. 

Item #6.1: Acceptance/Approval of the Audit Report for Fiscal Year ending 6/30/24 
Council Member Herman Lewis, seconded by Council Member Ricky Leinwand, made a 
motion to approve the Audit Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024 (Unanimous). Copy 
attached and inco:rporated herein by reference. 

Item #6.2: Water and Sewer Bid for Corporate Airpark 
Town Planner Rusty Worley noted that there will be 5 different phases, Hickman Utilities cost 
estimate is $219,711.22. Council Member Rich Glenn, seconded by Council Member Herman 
Lewis, made a motion to approve the cost estimate from Hickman Utilities. (Unanimous). Copy 
attached and incorporated herein by reference. 

12 



Item #6.3: Appointment: Relief Fund Board of Trustees Appointed by Local Government 
Council Member Ricky Leinwand, seconded by Council Member Rich Glenn, made a motion 
to re-appoint Mr. Wayne Edge to serve a one-year term and Mr. Larry Richards a two-year term 
(Unanimous). 

Item #6.4: Appointment: Elizabethtown Recreation Commission 
Council Member Rich Glenn, seconded by Council Member Herman Lewis, made a motion to 
appoint Mr. Hasting McGill to serve on the Elizabethtown Recreation Commission with a term 
of office to expire January 6, 2029 {Unanimous). 

Item #7 .1: "Briefly" 
• Town Manager Dane Rideout briefed on the following: 
• The Town had the best Audit, Fund Balance is the highest it's ever been. Thanks to the 

Finance Director and staff for what they do. 
• Take a look at the Department Head Updates. 
• January 14, 2025 Airport meeting at 7:30 a.m. at the Airport Terminal. 
• The Martin Luther King Jr. Parade is January 20, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. 
• The Chamber Award Gala is February 1, 2025 from 6:00 - 10:00 p.m. at Cape Fear 

Winery. 
• Town's Annual Budget Retreat is February 25, 2025 at the Airport Terminal Building. 
• Admin. Asst./Deputy Clerk/CTC Beverly Robinson celebrated her birthday January 5, 

2025. 
• A major Airline will have flight training at the Airport. 

Item #8.1: Open Forum 
Mr. Leroy Churchill with VFW is asking the Town for a donation for Desert Storm Vets. He is 
trying to have a membership drive to recruit Vets. There are over 3,000 Veterans. 

With no further business to conduct, Council Member Herman Lewis, seconded by Council 
Member Rich Glenn, moved to adjourn (Unanimous). 

Sylvia Campbell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Beverly Robinson, CTC/AdminAsst/DTC 

13 



ELIZABETHTOWN as of January 30, 2025 
BUDGET & FINANCE SNAPSHOT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 REVENUES 
58% of Year Completed 

Prior Year 
Fiscal Year Actual Y-T-D as Actual-to-Date 

Revenue Sources Budget of 1-30-2025 % of Budget 1-31-2024 
GENERAL FUND 

Ad Va lorem & BID Taxes 1,973,465.00 1,977,568 100.2% 1,730,305 
Vehicle Taxes 198,000.00 83,086 42 .0% 91,144 
Local Option Sales Taxes 850,000.00 288,885 34.0% 286,961 
Utility Franchise Taxes 302,000.00 97,222 32.2% 86,039 
ABC Revenue 105,000.00 52,500 50.0% 52,500 
Powell Bill 120,000.00 135,006 112.5% 123,086 
Bladen Fire District 256,909.00 81,500 31.7% 61,500 
Street Improvement Loan 0.00 0 0.0% 0 
Solid Waste fees 1,374,000.00 784,997 57.1% 679,419 
Permits & Fees 48,635.00 30,924 63.6% 33,005 
Rental Income 113,200.00 29,128 25.7% 31,615 
Interest Income 180,000.00 113,771 63 .2% 178,602 
Salary & Admin. Reimbursements 0.00 0 0.0% 5,718 
Miscellaneous Revenues 197,447.00 171,819 87.0% 39,226 
Restricted Grants & Donations 110,000.00 47,000 0.0% 0 
General Fund Balance Approp. 139,683.00 0 0.0% 0 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 5,968,339.00 3,893,405 65.2% 3,399,120 

WATER FUND 

Water fees 871,400.00 575,758 66.1% 501,177 
Sewer fees 1,053,400.00 690,833 65.6% 606,883 
Miscellaneous Revenue 145,000.00 92,353 63.7% 92,022 
Utilit y Fund Balance Approp. 0.00 0 0.0% 0 
TOTAL WATER FUND 2,069,800.00 1,358,944 65.7% 1,200,082 

ATTACR. #E 

14 



BUDGET & FINANCE SNAPSHOT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 EXPENDITURES 

Department 

Governing Body 

Administration 

Finance 

Public Works 

Technology 

Public Facilities 

Police 

Fire 

Streets 

Powell 

Street Improvement Loan Project 

Solid Waste 

Planning & Economic Develop. 

Recreation 

Farmers' Market 

Airport 

Special Appropriations 

Restricted Grants & Donations 

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 

Water 

Sewer 

Tank Maintenance & Transfer Out 

WATER FUND TOTAL 

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

GENERAL FUND 

WATER FUND 

TOTAL COMBINED FUNDS 

Fiscal Year 

Budget 

42,213.00 
578,962.00 
236,750.00 
770,010.00 

86,300.00 
239,876.00 

1,304,093.00 
927,262.00 
131,388.00 
287,149.00 

0.00 
768,000.00 
143,021.00 

34,750.00 
25,243.00 
29,920.00 

253,402.00 
110,000.00 

5,968,339.00 

WATER FUND 

937,532.00 
1,032,268.00 

100,000.00 

2,069,800.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

Actual Y-T-D as 

of 1-30-2025 

26,135 
306,949 
128,921 
422,565 

44,126 
178,747 
730,435 
576,569 
128,911 
145,703 

0 
259,873 

93,866 
8,033 

23,748 
6,621 

99,402 
38,863 

3,219,466 

442,867 
529,239 

58,333 

1,030,439 

673,939 
328,505 

1,002,444 

% of Budget 

61.9% 
53.0% 
54.5% 
54.9% 
51.1% 
74.5% 
56.0% 
62.2% 
98.1% 
50.7% 

0.0% 

33.8% 
65.6% 
23.1% 
0.0% 

22.1% 
39.2% 
35.3% 

53.9% 

47.2% 

51.3% 
58.3% 

49.8% 

Prior Year 

Actual-to-Date 

1-31-2024 

35,166 
325,798 
150,306 
441,599 

29,178 
33,536 

711,946 
622,920 
40,142 

111,321 
906,089 

279,325 
87,004 
29,418 

1,108 
57,375 
79,402 

0 

3,941,633 

426,866 

429,866 
58,333 

915,065 

(542,513) 
285,017 

(257,496) 

363,576 

648,593 

15 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Dane Rideout, Town Manager _Q 

FROM: Beverly Robinson, Certified Tax Collector/ Admin Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk 
SUBJECT: Unpaid Tax Report 

DATE: January 30, 2025 

Listed below is the breakdown of the amounts and years 2014-2023 that have been charged and 

advertised and left on the books. f he amount for 2024 to be charged with and advertised in 
March is $177,834.20. 

2014 $ 293.86 
2015 $ 735.87 
2016 $1 ,419.63 
2017 $ 21,806.59 

2018 $25,242.65 
2019 $ 6,173.49 

2020 $ 4,572.60 
2021 $8,311.51 
2022 $ 14,404.74 

2023 $40,945.27 
2024 $177,834.20 

ATIIACH.# 

16 



Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

PRESENTATIONS 

Special Presentation to Communications & Marketing Director Terri 
Dennison 

Mayor Sylvia Campbell will present to Communications & 
Marketing Director Terri Dennison an engraved plaque recognizing 
her service to the Town since October 2019. Mrs. Dennison will be 
leaving employment with the Town. She will be the Director of the 
Small Business Center at Bladen Community College, and we wish 
Mrs. Dennison well in her new job. Mrs. Dennison has transfonned 
our Elizabethtown community! 

Council is requested to hear the presentation. 

17 



II AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.2 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

PRESENTATIONS 

Town Manager Update 

Either Town Manager Dane Rideout and/or Assistant Town Manager 
Pat De Vane may be called upon to present project updates and other 
important items of interest. 

Council is requested to hear the updates. 

18 



II AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.1 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) No. 18-D-3095 
(NR-Contingency) - Grant Agreement and Funding Approval -
$4,400,000.00 

Town Manager Dane Rideout may be called upon to present this 
agenda item. 

The required Public Hearings for this grant funding were conducted 
on August 5, 2024. 

Copy of Grant Agreement, Funding Approval and Signatory 
Form and Certification provided. 

Council is requested to approve the grant documents for the Cl 
Vulcan Air Manufacturing Facility project. 

CDBG Grant Agreement, Funding Approval and Signatory Form and Certification.pdf 

19 



NC DEPARTMENT 
of COMMERCE 
RVRAt ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMEN? 

Grant Agreement 

Comm unity Development Block Grant Neighborhood Revitalization Program 

Upon execution of this grant agreement, the North Carolina Department of Commerce (DOC) agrees 
to provide to the Town of Elizabethtown, ( the "Recipient" and collectively with DOC, the 
"Parties':), Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) assistance under Title I of the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1974, (P.L. 93-383), as amended, authorized (and subject to 
Recipient's compliance with) the DOC fonding approval, the North Carolina Community 
Development Block Grant administrative rules, otl1er applicable laws, rnles, regulations, and all 
other requirements of DOC now or hereafter in effect. The grant agreement is effective on the date 
the grant agreement and funding approval are signed by the Recipient. The grant agreement consists 
ofilie program guidelines and the approved application, including fue certifications, maps, schedules 
and oilier submissions in the application, any subsequent amendments to this docmnent or the 
approved application and funding approval and the following general terms and conditions: 

1. Definitions. Except to the extent modified or supplemented by the agreement, any 
term defined in the North Carolina Commtmity Development Block Grant 
Administrative Rules, 4 NCAC 191, shall have the same meaning when used herein. 

(a) Agreement means this grant agreement, as described above and any 
amendments or supplements thereto. 

(b) Recipient means the Town of Elizabethtown, the entity designated 
as a recipient for grant assistance in the grant agreement and fonding 
approval. 

(c) Certifications mean the certifications stibrnitted with the grant 
application pursuant to the requirements of Paragraph ( e) of Rule 
.0407 of the North Carolina Community Development Block Grant 
Administrative Rules, 4 NCAC 191. 

(d) "Assistance" or "Grant" means the grant funds provided under this 
Agreement from fonds allocated to the State of North Carolina from 
the Federal Treasury through the CDBG and supporting laws, rnles, 
requirements, and regulations, in the amount of $4,400,000 except as 
modified. 

( e) Program means the community development program, project, or 
other activities, including the administration fuereof, for which 
assistance is being provided under this Agreement and which is 
described in the Recipient's approved application, as may be 
modified. 

(f) The date for receiving the grant means the date of the REDD CDBG Director's 
signatme on the Grant Agreement and Funding Approval. 

20 



2. 

3. 

4. 

Timely Execution. Due to the need to expedite the use and expenditure ofCDBG fonds, 
Recipient's failure to execute and return a copy of the Agreement within 60 days of the date 
of the REDD CDBG Director's signature on the Grant Agreement and Funding Approval 
may be deemed by DOC to determine the fonds are available for reallocation to other 
subrecipients. 

Obligations of the Recipient. The recipient shall perform the Program as specified in the 
application approved by DOC as may be amended with DOC approval. The Recipient 
hereby certifies that it will comply with all applicable federal and state laws, regulations, 
mies, and Executive Orders, pursuant to Paragraph ( e) of Rule .0407 of the North Carolina 
Community Development Block Grant Administrative Rules, 4 NCAC 191. The Recipient 
shall also comply with all other lawful requirements of DOC, all applicable requirements of 
the General Statutes of the State of North Carolina specifically N. C. G. S. 87-1-87-15.9 and 
any other applicable laws, rules, regulations, requirements, and Executive Orders currently 
or hereafter in force. Recipient is prohibited from any fraud, waste, and abuse of CDBG 
funds by any person or enti1y. The rules contained in 4 N.C.A.C. 191 (as well as applicable 
federal mies and regulations) are part of the Agreement, except where specifically modified 
by applicable law, mle, regulation, DOC, the CDBG HUD Program Requirements and any 
subsequent amendments, regulations, or clarifications to any of the foregoing. 

Additionally, Recipient agrees to ensure compliance with respect to the Program and the 
Grant (and any of its proceeds) with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, regulations 
and requirements, including but not limited to the following (as each may be modified or 
amended): (1) the CDBG HUD Program Requirements; (2) Title I of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. 5301 et seq), (3) existing 
CDBG laws, rules, regulations and requirements, as'may be amended, including those set 
forth in 24 C.F.R., Part 570; (4) North Carolina laws, rules, regulations and requirements; (5) 
DOC guidance and requirements regarding CDBG now or hereafter in effect, including but 
not limited to: DOC's CDBG Guidelines and Application Instructions, and DOC bulletins or 
other guidance documents; and (6) Recipient's own approved CDBG application to DOC, as 
may be amended with DOC approval. 

Obligations of Recipient with Respect to Certain Third-Party Relationships. Recipient is 
responsible to DOC for ensuring compliance with the provisions of this Agreement and all 
applicable laws, mies, regulations, and requirements, even when the recipient designates a 
third party or parties to undertake all or any part of the Program. The Recipient shall comply 
with all lawful requirements of DOC necessary to ensure that the program is carried ont in 
accordance with the Recipient's certifications including but not limited to the certification of 
assumption of environmental responsibilities under Rule .1004 of the North Carolina 
Community Development Block Grant Administrative Rules, 4 NCAC 191. If the Recipient 
contracts with or designates a third party to m1dertal<e all or part of the Program, the 
Recipient's contract with the third par1y must require the third par1y to comply with this 
Agreement, all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and requirements, including but not 
limited to the procurement standards set forth in 4 N.C. Administrative Code 191 .0908 as 
may be applicable. 

Recipient shall likewise ensure that all subrecipient contracts regarding Grant fonds or 
relating to the Program include all required contractual elements in order to be in 
compliance with all Federal, State and local laws, including but not limited to the provisions 

.J 2 
21 



contained in 24 C.F.R. § 570.503, 24 C.F.R. § 85.3 7, and other provisions described 
throughout this Agreement, where applicable. In any event, the Recipient is liable to DOC 
and HUD for any improper expenditures, damage, loss, or harm resulting from the failure of 
any person or entity to comply with any applicable Jaw, rule, regulation, or requirement 
regarding the Grant fonds and/or the Program, including but not limited to an act or 
omission by a subrecipient or other third party. The Recipient agrees to periodically and 
rigorously monitor and audit its subrecipients and other third parties to ensure compliance 
with all applicable requirements. 

Any subcontracts or subrecipient agreements entered into by the Recipient with Grant fonds 
shall be subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement. Payment of all subcontractors 
and subrecipients shall be the sole responsibility of the Recipient, and DOC shall not be 
obligated to pay for any work performed by any subcontractor or subrecipient. The 
Recipient shall be responsible for the perfonnance of all subcontractors and subrecipients 
and shall not be relieved of any of the duties and responsibilities of this Agreement as a 
result of entering into subcontracts or subrecipient agreements. 

5. Changes to Agreement. Recipient agrees that DOC may supplement or modi:fy this 
Agreement as may be necessary to implement additional or modified Federal or State 
guidance regarding implementation of the CDBG program. 

6. Conflict oflnterest. Recipient agrees to comply with all applicable conflict of 
interest provisions, including but not limited to those found at 4 N.C.A.C. 19 L .0908 
and .0914, N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 14-234, 24 C.F.R. § 85.36, 24 C.F.R. § 570.489 (g) and 
(h), and 24 C.F.R. § 570.611, where applicable, copies of which may be obtained 
from DOC. 

Except for eligible administrative or perso1111el costs, the general rule is that no persons 
described in the following sentence who exercise or have exercised any functions or 
responsibilities with respect to grant activities assisted under this Agreement or who are in a 
position to participate in a decision-maldng process or gain inside information with regard to 
such activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a Grant-assisted activity, or 
have an interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract 
or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds there under, either for themselves or those 
with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter. 

The conflict-of-interest summary in the sentence above generally applies to any person who 
is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of the state, 
or of a unit of general local government, or of any designated public agencies, or Recipient 
or applicable third parties which are receiving CDBG grant fonds. 

Recipient agrees to include these same prohibitions in all such contracts or subcontracts with 
any subrecipients or other third parties relating to the Program. 

In any event, ihe Assistance provided under this Agreement shall not be used in the payment 
of any bonus or commission for the purpose of obtaining DOC approval of the application 
for such assistance, or DOC approval of applications for additional assistance, or any other 
approval or concui-rence of DOC required under this Agreement, or the N01th Carolina 
Comm1mity Development Block Grant Administrative Rules, with respect thereto; provided, 
however, that reasonable fees or bona fide technical, consultant, managerial or other such 

3 
22 



7. 

8, 

9. 

10. 

11. 

services, other than actual solicitation, are not prohibited if otherwise eligible as program 
costs and allowed by applicable law. 

Additionally, certain limited exceptions to the conflict-of-interest rnles listed in 24 
C.F.R. § 570.489 may be granted in writing by HUD and/or DOC upon written 
request and the provision of information specified in 24 C.F .R. § 570.489(h)(ii)( 4). 

Reimbursement to DOC for Improper Expenditures. The Recipient will reimburse 
DOC for any amount of Grant assistance improperly expended, either deliberately or 
non-deliberately, by any person or entity. Additionally, a contract for administrative 
services shall include a clause holding the administrator organization responsible for 
reimbm-sement to the Recipient for any improperly expended grant fonds that bad to 
be returned to DOC. 

Recordkeeping Requirements. Recipient will maintain any and all records and 
comply with all responsibilities as may be required under typical CDBG 
recordkeeping (for example, records and responsibilities set forth in 4 N.C.A.C. 
191.0911 ("Recordkeeping"), 24 C.F.R. 570.490 ("Recordkeeping Requirements"), 
24 C.F.R. § 570.506 ("Records to be maintained") and 24 C.F.R. § 85.42 ("Retention 
and Access Requirements for Records") as each may be modified by HUD or DOC) 
as well as records and responsibilities related to CDBG or specifically to CDBG 
funds. Recipient agrees to comply with any additional record-keeping requirements 
now or hereinafter set forth by DOC, HUD or any other federal or state entity. 

Access to Records. The Recipient shall provide any duly authorized representative of 
DOC, the State of North Carolina, the federal Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), and the Comptroller General, the Inspector General and other 
authorized parties at all reasonable times access to and the right to inspect, copy, 
monitor, and examine all of the books, papers, records, and other documents relating 
to the grant for a period of five years following the completion of all close-out 
procedures. All original files shall be maintained at the Local Govemment offices 
for access purposes. 

Release of Personal, Financial, and Identifying Infonnation. To ensure and document 
compliance with CDBG income requirements as well as other matters, Recipient shall obtain 
and retain personal, income-related, financial, tax and/or related information from 
individuals and families that are benefitting from Grant or Program fonds. Additionally, 
Recipient is obligated to provide access to any and all information relating to the Program to 
DOC, HUD or some other appropriate federal or state monitoring entity, upon DOC's 
request. This obligation includes, but is not limited to, the personal, financial, and 
identifying information of individuals assisted by the Program. As such, Recipient shall 
obtain any releases or waivers from all individuals or entities necessary to ensure that this 
information can be properly and legally provided to appropriate federal and state entities, 
including DOC and HUD, without issue or objection by the individual or entity. 

Project Savings. The Recipient is obligated to contribute l 00 percent of its pledged cash 
contribution to the CDBG project even if the project experiences a savings after authorized 
activities are completed. Any project savings accrue to the CDBG program. Substitution of 
in-kind contributions for cash is not allowed. 

4 
23 



12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

Expenditure of Non-CD BG Funds. The recipient must ensure that non-CDBG funds are 
expended along with CDBG fonds, following the implementation schedule described in the 
approved application and modified by the Performance Contract ( or otherwise with DOC 
approval), and shall report on non-CDBG expenditures with each Annual Performance 
Report, consistent with Section .1100 PERFORMANCE of the program regulations 
(4NCAC 191) as well as any other applicable reporting requirements. 

Method of Payment. The Department of Commerce uses the Office of State Controller 
(OSC) to mal(e CDBG payments to units oflocal government. The Electronic Payment 
Form from OSC must be completed for funds to be electronically transferred. Arrangements 
must be made with the Finance Officer in the Rural Economic Development Division if a 
Recipient does not want to use the electronic funds transfer. 

Fair Housing. Recipients of CDBG funds are required to comply with fair housing and non
discrimination laws and regulations. Recipients should cons11lt Section .100 I of the CDBG 
administrative rules for further infonnation on equal opportunity requirements. Recipients 
are required to submit a fair housing plan for its jurisdiction. Recipients with 10,000 persons 
or more will be required to complete an Analysis to Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 
Study. For each grant year that a CDBG project is active, a Recipient must describe the 
actions it will tal(e in the areas of enforcement, education and.removal of barriers and 
impediments to affirmatively Jirrther fair housing, Guidance for developing a Fair Housing 
Plan can be found at www.corrrmerce.nc,gov. 

Equal Employment and Procurement Opportunity. A Recipient must describe the actions it 
will take annually while the grant is open in the areas of enforcement, education and removal 
of barriers and impediments that affinnatively farther equal access in employment and 
procurement. This includes a description of steps to be taken in the areas of advertisement, 
compliance, and complaint tracking. 

Local Economic Benefit (Section 3 Regulation). For each year that a CDBG is active, the 
Recipient must describe a strategy whereby opportunities in employment and procurement 
arising out of a CDBG assisted project are identified and made available to low-income 
residents within the CDBG assisted area to the greatest extent feasible. This strategy must 
include (1) identification of training and technical assistance resources to prepare low
income residents for employment and procurement opportunities, (2) attempts to reach the 
numerical targets for new hires set forth in the Section 3 regulation, which applies to 
Recipients receiving $200,000 or more in non-ac!ministrative line items expended for 
construction contracts and (3) education oflow-income residents within the CDBG assisted 
area about the components and opportunities of the program. 

In addition, Recipients will be required to coordinate additional activities as it relates to 
Section 3 with the DOC CDBG Compliance Office. 

17. Section 504 and ADA. Recipients must complete the Section 504 Survey and 
Transition Plan. This plan will not satisfy all the requirements of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, but it will meet the minimum requirements for a CDBG
assisted project. 

18. Environmental Review. Recipients of CDBG fonds are required to complete the document 
entitled "Environmental Review Procedures for the CDBG Program." Once the 

5 
24 



Environmental Review Record (ERR) is received, REDD will review for completeness arid 
submit selected CDBG ERRs ifrequired to the State Clearinghouse for other State agencies 
to review and comment. Recipients cannot conduct any progran1 activities until REDD 
issues an environmental clearance. 

19. Language Access Plan (LAP). Recipients of Federal financial assistance have an obligation 
to reduce language barriers that can preclude meaningfol access by Limited English 
Proficient (LEP) persons to important government programs, services, and activities. Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000(d) and its implementing regulations 
require that Recipients take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access by LEP persons. 
Recipients will be required to submit a language access plan using the approved template 
from REDD. The plan will address the LAP policy, translation of required vital documents, 
and requirements for citizen participation. 

20. Procurement Standards. Where applicable, Recipient shall follow the procurement standards 
established in the "Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to 
State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments" (24 C.F.R., Part 85) and 
HUD implementing regulations contained in 24 C.F.R. § 570.489(g). which explicitly 
prohibit cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost methods of 
contracting. 4 N.C.A.C. 191.0908. 

21. 

22. 

a. Any Recipient or Subrecipient shall follow other applicable procurement standards 
set forth in 4 N.C.A.C. 191.0908, and the relevant laws cited therein, including but 
not limited to, laws related to conflicts of interest (N.C.G.S. §14-234), public 
building contracts (N.C.G.S. § 148-128 to 135), and payment and performance bonds 
(N.C.G.S. § 44A-25 through 35); acquisition and relocation (4 N.C.A.C. 191. !003); 
property management standards (4 N.C.A.C. 191.0909); equal opportunity (4 
N.C.A.C. 191.1001); and labor standards (4 N.C.A.C, 191.1006). 

b. Recipient shall likewise follow all other applicable federal and state procurement 
rules, guidelines, and procedures, including those set forth in Office of Management 
and Budget Circular No. A-87 ("Cost Principles for State and Local Governments"). 

In any event, per 24 C.F.R. 570.489(g), all purchase orders and contracts shall include any 
clauses required by Federal statutes, executive orders and implementing regulations. 

Additionally, Recipient aclmowledges and agrees that, in its conduct lmder this Agreement 
and in connection with any and all expenditures of Grant fonds made by it, Recipient, its 
officers, agents and employees shall be and are subject to the provisions of the North 
Carolina General Statutes and the North Carolina Administrative Code relating to and 
governing procurement, public contracts, suspension and debarment. Recipient further 
acknowledges and agrees that, in the event that it grants any of the Grant funds awarded 
hereunder to one or more subrecipients or other applicable entities, Recipient shall, by 
contract, ensure that the provisions of all applicable laws relating to and governing 
procurement, public contracts, suspension and debarment are made applicable to and binding 
upon any and all subrecipients and/or other applicable entities. 

Labor Standards. Recipient shall follow all applicable laws, rules and regulations concerning 
the payment of wages, contract work hours, safety, health standards, and equal opportunity 
for CDBG programs, including but not limited to the rules set forth in 4 N.C.A.C 191.1006, 
24 C.F.R. § 570.603 and the following (as may be applicable to CDBG-R projects): 

6 
25 



a. Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C.A. 276a). Among other provisions, this act requires that 
prevailing local wage levels be paid to laborers and mechanics employed on certain 
construction work assisted with CDBG funds. 

b. Contract Work Homs and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.A. 327 through 333). 
Under this act, among other provisions, laborers and mechanics employed by 
contractors and subcontractors on construction work assisted with CDBG funds must 
receive overtime compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half the basic rate 
of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in any workweek. Violators shall 
be liable for the impaid wages and in addition for liquidated damages computed in 
respect to each laborer or mechanic employed in violation of the act. 

c. Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. 201 et seq.), requiring among other things that 
covered employees be paid at least the minimum prescribed wage, and also that they 
be paid one and one-halftimes their basic wage rate for all hours worked in excess of 
the prescribed work-week. 

d. Federal anti-ldckback laws (18 U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C. 276), which, among other 
things, outlaws and prescribes criminal penalties for "kickbacks" of wages in 
federally financed or assisted construction activities. Weekly statements of 
compliance and weekly payrolls must be provided by all contractors and 
subcontractors. 

Recipient agrees to maintain records regarding compliance with the laws and regulations 
cited in 4 N.C.A.C. 191.1006 (including the citations listed above) in accordance with 4 
N.C.A.C. 19L.091 l. 

All contracts between Recipient and third parties shall contain labor standards provisions as 
required in 4 N.C.A.C. l 9L.l 006. 

23. Architectllfal Barriers. Per4 N.C.A.C.19L.1007, 24 C.F.R. §§ 570.487 and 570.614 and 
other applicable law, all applicable buildings or facilities designed, constructed, or altered 
with CDBG Grant flmds shall be made accessible and useable to the physically handicapped 
as may be required by applicable laws, rules, regulations, or requirements. Additionally, 
Recipient must comply with the following (as may be applicable to CDBG projects): 

a. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (P .L. 90-480). This act requires Recipient to 
ensure that certain buildings constructed or altered with CDBG flmds are readily 
accessible to the physically handicapped. 

b. Minimum Guidelines and Requirements for Accessible Design 36 C.F.R. Part 1190. 
These regulations establish guidelines for implementing the federal acts described in 
4 N.C.A.C.19L. l 007(1 )(a). The regulations provide technical standards which must 
be met by Recipient. 

c. Americans with Disabilities Act ["ADA"] and the ADA Accessibility Guidelines for 
Buildings and Facilities or the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards. 

d. North Carolina Building Code, Volume I, Chapter 11-X. These provisions describe 
minimum standards Recipient must meet in constructing or altering building and 
facilities, to make them accessible to and useable by the physically handicapped. 

24. Change of Use of Real Property. Recipient agrees not to change the use or planned use of 
any property acquired with CDBG funds from that for which the acquisition or improvement 
was made, in accordance with this Agreement and applicable law, rule, regulation or 
requirement,. unless (i) the DOC grants explicit written approval and (ii) the requirements of 

7 
26 



24 C.F.R. § 570.489G), 24 C.F.R. § 570.505 and other applicable requirements are followed, 
as modified (or as may be modified) by HUD or DOC. 

24. Obligation of Recipient with Regard to Vacant Units. The recipient shall ensure that 
all vacant units being rehabilitated will be occupied by a low or moderate income 
person by the time close-out occurs. 

25. Utility Assessments or Fees: Assessments or fees to recover the CDBG ftmded 
portion of a utility project may be charged to properties not owned and occupied by 
low-and-moderate income persons. Such assessments are program income and, as 
such, must be used for eligible CDBG activities that meet a CDBG national objective. 

26. False or Misleading Information. Recipient is advised that providing false, fictitious, or 
misleading information with respect to CDBG fonds may result in criminal, civil; or 
administrative prosecution under 18 U.S.C. § 1001, 18 U.S.C. § 1343, 31 U.S.C. § 3729, 31 
U.S.C. § 3801, or another applicable statute. Recipient shall promptly refer to DOC and 
HUD's Office of the Inspector General any credible evidence that a principal, employee, 
agent, contractor, sub-grantee, subcontractor, or other person has submitted a false claim 
tmder the False Claims Act or has committed a criminal or civil violation oflaws pertaining 
to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving CDBG funds. 

27. Disputes with DOC. If Recipient has any disagreement or dispute with any action or 
inaction by DOC, Recipient shall inform DOC by letter addressed to Iris C. Payne, CDBG 
Director, N.C. Department of Commerce - Rural Economic Development Division, 4346 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-4346. The Rural Economic Development Division 
["REDD"] will endeavor to respond in writing to said letter within 30 days from receipt. 
Recipient shall not be entitled to a hearing under Chapter 150B for matters described in N.C. 
Gen. Stat.§ 150B(c)(8), added by N.C. Senate Bill 960, including matters related to 
"contracts, disputes, protests, and/or claims arising out of or relating to the implementation 
of the [CDBG]." This includes actions arising out of or related to this Agreement or the 
Program. 

28. Disputes or Complaints by Subrecipients or Other Entities. Recipient is responsible for 
developing, implementing, and utilizing its own dispute resolution procedures with respect to 
disputes and/or complaints between and among Recipient, a Subrecipient, a contractor and/or 
any other person or entity ( other than DOC). This includes (but is not limited to) procedures 
relating to procurement disputes or protests discussed in 24 C.F.R. 85.36. In the event of a 
dispute between and among Recipient, any Subrecipient, contractor and/or any other persons 
or entities (not including DOC), Recipient shall malce every effort to resolve the dispute 
pursuant to its own dispute resolution procedures and shall issue a final decision on the 
matter as soon as is reasonably practicable. Recipient's dispute resolution procedure shall 
provide that, in the event that any party to such a dispute or complaint is dissatisfied wrth the 
final decision or other resolution provided by Recipient, the dissatisfied party shall appeal to 
the North Carolina Superior Court in an appropriate County for a trial de novo, to the extent 
that jurisdiction is proper pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 7 A-240 and other applicable law. 

2 9. Schedules 
(a) Schedule for Release of Conditions and Completion Activities. The Recipient must 

satisfy all Funding Approval Conditions to release CDBG funds within 3 months 
(4/14/2021) from the date the Grant Agreement and Funding Approval were signed 

8 
27 



by the REDD CDBG Director. The recipient must draw clown all CDBG :ftmcls, 
expend all local non-CDBG funds and complete all project activities in conformance 
with the activities' implementation schedule in the application as modified by 111e 
Pe1formance Based Contract. 

(b) The Recipient must obligate all funds within 6 months (6/17/2025) from the elate the 
Grant Agreement and Funding Approval are signed by REDD CDBG Director. 

(c) All funds are to be expendecl within 8 months (8/17/2025) from the elate the Grant 
Agreement and Funding Approval are signed by REDD CDBG Director. Any 
remaining funds will be de-obligated. 

(d) AIi closeout documents must be returned to REDD by (12/17/2025). 

( e) Schedule for Submission of Compliance Documents. The Recipient must submit the 
following compliance documents within the specified number of months from the date 
the Grant Agreement and the Funding Approval were signed by the REDD CDBG 
Director: 

• Environmental- 4 months (NA-completed) 
• Equal Employment and Procurement Plan - 4 months (7/17/2025) 
• Section 3 Plan -4 months (7/10/2025) 
• Section 504 Plan - 4 months (7/10/2025) 
• Language Access Plan - 4 months (7/10/2025) 
• Analysis of Impediments- 4 months (NA) 
• Request for Release of Funds - 5 months (NA-completecl) 

(f) Timely Drawdown of Funds. Recipient is expected make timely drawdowns so that 
funds are expended in a timely manner. 

30. Performance Measures 
The CPD Performance Measurement System is HUD's response to the standards set by the 
Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) of 1993. This act holds all Federal 
agencies accountable for establishing goals and objectives and measuring achievements. 

(a) The recipient must ensure that all activities in the funded project(s) meet the 
appropriate o~jectives, outcomes, and indicators established by HUD and selected by 
DOC. CDBG funds cannot be used to pay for any activity that does not meet the 
above requirement. 

(b) The recipient must also assist DOC, when requested, in collecting indicators and any 
other data necessary to fulfill the requirements of the CPD Performance Measures 
System, which includes data for the Integrated Disbursement and Information 
System (IDIS). 

Upon execution of this agreement by DOC and the Recipient, the Recipient hereby accepts the 
assistance on the te1ms of this grant agreement effective on the date indicated below, and further 
ce1tifies that the official signing this document has been duly authorized by the recipient's governing 
body to execute this Grant Agreement. 

9 
28 



Date: 1/l 7 /2025 

Date: ___ _ 

Secretary of the Department of Commerce 

0 By: ----"'7/~""'"""""'"-'<...1·0,_,~~f"'....,""-"-l()"""J:..__ __ 
Valerie Fegan.sU 
CDBG Director 
Rural Economic Development Division 

Name of Recipient 

0 By:. __________ _ 

Signature of Authorized Official 

(Title) 

10 
29 



NC DEPARTMENT 
of COMMliRClii 
RURAl. &CONOMIC 
01:VGLOPMUNT 

Community Development Block Grant Neighborhood Revitalization Program 

Funding Approval 

1. Name and Address of Recipient 
Town of Elizabethtown 
Post Office Box 700 
Elizabethtown, North Carolina 28337 

2. Grant Number and Funding Approval Date 
Grant Number: 18-D-3095 
Date of Original Funding Approval: 1/17/2025 
Date of Amended Funding Approval: 

3. Approved Projects 

Cl Vulcan Air Manufacturing Facility 

Total Grant Award 

Approved Amount 

$4,400,000.00 

$4,400,000.00 

4, Funding Approval Conditions 

The following conditions must be removed in writing by the Rural Economic Development Division 
in order for all funds to be released for the approved project(s) listed in item (3) above: 

A. Administration Contracts/Inter-local agreements Condition: 

No funds may be obligated or expended in any project activity except the administration activity 
until the recipient has submitted either a copy of the contract awarded for administration of this 
grant or a statement signed by the CEO stating that the contract will be administered internally. 

B. Use of Experienced CDBG Administrator: 
No funds may be obligated or expended for the administration activity until the recipient has 
submitted a statement signed by the CEO stating that they will be using an experienced CDBG 
administrator or local government staff. This person should be one who has administered more than 
one (1) CDBG project. Please note that if issues result from the CDBG administrator, the local 
government will be subject to 4 NCAC 191. 

5. Signature of Authorized Official 

1/17/2025 

Valerie Fegans Date 

CDBG Director 

Title 

Town of Elizabethtown Page 1 18-D-3095 30 



6. Signature of Authorized Local Official 

Name Date 

Title 

Town of Elizabethtown Page2 18-D-3095 31 



. SIGNATORY FORM AND CERTIFICATION Grant No. ____ _ 

Recipient Name _________________ _ 

Address: 

Signatures of Individuals authorized to sign Requisition for Funds forms. (Two signatures required on each requisition.) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) (Typed Title) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) (Typed Title) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) (Typed Title) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) (Typed Title) 

CERTIFICATION 
1. ( ) I certify that the signatures above are of the Individuals authorized to sign Requisition for Funds form for the 

above recipient. 

Certifying Official + Title 
2. ( ) The governing board has passed a resolution authorizing the pereons above to sign Requisition for Funds forms . 

for the above recipient. A copy of the resolution is attatched. 
I certlfiy that the signatures above are those of the Individuals authorized by resolution of the governing board 
of the recipient to sign Requisition for Funds forms, 

Certifying Official + Title 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING SIGNATORY FORM AND CERTIFICATION 

1. Indicate name and address of the recipient. 

2. Two authorized signatures shall be required on all Requisition for Funds forms. The Rural Economic Development 
Division will check the signatures on each requisition form to see that they match the authorized signatures on 
the Signatory Form and Certification. Only the signatures of persons shown on the Signatory Forms and 
Certification will be· accepted. 

3. To allow for flexibility in making requisition requests, It Is recommended that four authorized signatures appear on 
the Signatory Form and Certification, Local governments may choose one of two options In completing the 
Certification. If the facal government choose to use the first option, the chief elected official or the chief finance 
officer must sign the form as the certifying official. In signing as the certifying official, the chief elected official or 
chief finance officer certifies that: 1) the signatures are authentic and 2) that the persons designated as signatories 
are authorized to sign requisitions for payment. If the chief elected official of the chief finance officer 
Is the certifying official, that person may not also be authorized signature. 

If the community wishes to have both the ch]ef elected official and the chief finance officer sign requisitions for 
payment, the community should select the second option for certification. In this case, the governing board must 
pass a resolution authorizing sufficient persons to act as signatories. In addition, an Individual who is not 
designated as a signatory must certify the authenticity of the authorized signatures. Anyone who knows all of the 
persons authorized to sign requisitions may sign as the certifying official. Another local government staff person or 
member of the governing.body Is recommended. 

4. If the recipient wished to change the persons authorized to sign the requisition for funds form a new Signatory Form 
and Certification must be submitted to the Rural Economic Development Division. 

5. No erasures or corrections may appear on the Signatory Form and Certification. 

32 



Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

Authorization to Terminate EDA Award #04-79-07892 for 
Convenience 

Town Manager Dane Rideout may be called upon to present this 
agenda item. 

Council is requested to approve the termination of the EDA Award 
#04-79-07892 for convenience. 

33 



II AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.3 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 
6-30-2025 Audit Contract.pdf 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

Audit Contract - Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 

Finance Director Sharon Penny may be called upon to present this 
agenda item. 

Copy of Audit Contract provided. 

Council is requested to approve the Contract to Audit Accounts. 

34 



LGC-206 

The Governing Board 

of Primary Government Unit 
Town of Elizabethtown 

CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

and Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (If applicable) 
NA 

Primary Government Unit, together with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unlt(s} 

and Auditor Name 
Th.ompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
Auditor Address 
4024 Oleander Dr., Suite 103, Wilmington, NC 28403 

Hereinafter referred to as Auditor 

for Fiscal Year Ending 

06/30/25 

hereby agree as follows: 

Date Audit Will Be Submitted to LGC 

12/31/25 
Must be within six months of FYE 

Rev. 12/2024 

1. The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures-required by U.S. genere,lly accepted auditing 
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the! 
Governmental Unit(s). The non-major combining, and Individual fund statements and schedules shall 
besubjected to the au~ltlng procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion 
shalllbe rendered 'In relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the 
aggregatelDPCUs, each major gov¢rnmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
(non-r\iajor government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types). The 
basiclfinancial statements shall include budgetary comparison information In a budgetary comparison 
statement,!rather than as RSI, for the General Fund and any annually budgeted Special Revenue funds • 

• 
2. At· a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct the audit and render the report in accordance with GAAS. If the 
Governmental Unit expended $100,000 or more in combined Federal and State financial assistance during the 
reporting period, the Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
(GA_GAS). T~e Governmental Unit is subject to federal single audit requirements in ~coordance with Title 2 US 
Code of Feperal Regulatloi:is Part 200 Uniform Administration Requirements, Cos{Piinciples, an'd Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, Subpart F (Unifonn Guidance) and the State'Single Audit Implementation 
Act. Currently the threshold is $750,000 for a federal single audit and $500,000 for a'state Singh,! Audit. This 
audit and all associated audit documentation may be subject to review by Federal an~ State agencies in 
accordance with Federal l)nd State laws, including the staffs of the Office. of State Aud_ltor (OSA) and the Local 
Government Commission (L<,l'C). If the audit requires a federal single audit in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance (§200.501) the Auditor and Governmental Unlt(s) should discuss, in advance of the execution of this 
contract, tbe responsibility·for.submission of the audit and the accompanying data collection form to the Federal 
Audit Clearinghouse as required under the Uniform Guidance (§200.512) to ensure proper submission. 

Effective for audits of fiscal years beginning on or after June 30, 2023, the LGC will allow auditors to consider 
whether a unit qualifies as a State low-risk auditee. Please refer to "Discussion of Single Audits in North 
Carolina" on the LGC's website for more information. 

Page1 

35 



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 1212024 

If the audit and Auditor communication are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review 
may be forwarded to the North Carolina State Board of CPA Examiners (NC State Board). 

3. If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit 
standards, the entity's auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of 
the group auditor In accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42. 

4. This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting 
the audit, the Auditor determines that it wlll not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC Staff to discuss the circumstances leading to that 
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the 
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the 
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully 
explained in an attachment to this contract. 

5. If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing 
Standards, 2018 revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this 
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing 
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most 
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an 
audit contract. Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor's 
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the 
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Pnit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a 
peer review analysis-that may result in additional contractual requirements. 

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Auditing Standards qr if fin~ncial state.ments are not 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting prioclpies (G"AAP) and faJi to include all 
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to t~is 
contract or In an amendment. 

6. It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of 
audit submitted to LGC Staff within six months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to amend the audit 
fee orffie date- that the audit report will be submitted to the LGC, an amended contract -along with a written 
explanation of the change shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval. 

7. It is agreed that GAAS Include a review of the Governmental Unit's (Un!ls') systems of Internal control 
and accounting as same relate to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements 
applical>le thereto; that the Auditor shall make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written 
report of audit, to the Governing Board setting forth his/her findings, together with his recommendations for 
improvement. That written rep9rt shall include all matters defined as "significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses" in AU-C 265 of the A/CPA Professional Standards (Clarified). The A!,lditor shall file a copy of that 
report with the Secretary of the LGC. • 

For·GAAS or Government Auditing Standards audits, If an auditor issues an AU-C §260 report, commonly 
referred to as "Governance Letter," LGC staff does not require the report to be submitted unless the auditor 
cites significant findings or issues from the audit, as defined in AU-C §260.12 - .14. This would include 
issues such as difficulties encountered during the audit, significant or unusual transactions, uncorrected 
misstatements, matters that are difficult or contentious reviewed with those charged with governance, and 
other significant matters. If matters identified during the audit were required to be reported as described in 
AU-C §260.12-.14 and were communicated in a method other than an AU-C §260 letter, the written 
documentation must be submitted. 

Page2 

36 



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev, 12/2024 

8. All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the 
approval of the Secretary of the LGC. This include,s annµal or special audits, agreed upon procedures 
related to internal controls, bookkeeping or other asststance necessary to ,prepare the Governmental Unit's 
reCQrds jor audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related Investigations, or any other audit- related 
work in the State of North Carolina. Approval is also required for the Alternative Compliance Examination 
Engagement for auditing the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
expenditures 1;1s allowed by US Treasury. Approval is not required on audit contracts and invoices for 
system improvements and similar services of a non-auditing nature. 

9. Invoices for services rendered under these contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit(s) until 
the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC. This also includes any progress blllings 
[G.S. 159-34 and 115C-447]. All invoices for audit work shall be submitted in PDF formal to the Secretary 
of the LGC for approval. the invoice marked 'approved' with approval dale shall be returned lo the Auditor 
to present to the Governmental Unil(s) for payment. This paragraph is not applicable to contracts,for audits 
of hospitals. 

, ' 
1 O. In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental 
Unlt(s) sfia,11 pay to the Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of th'e LGC if required, the fee, which includes 
any costs the Auditor may 'incur from work paper or peer reviews or ahy offier quality assurance ,1:\rogram 
required by third parties (federal and state grantor and oversight agencies or 'Other qrgi;inizalions) 
as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees·for any pre-issuance 
reviews that inay be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee ·or NC Stale 
Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13). 

11. If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to .LGC Staff, 
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separatei report, a calculation demonstrating 
compliam;e with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additlonally, the Auditor shall submit to L.GC Staff 
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit's (Units') audited financial statements any other bond compliance 
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond docume,nts, unless otherwise specified in the 
bond documents. 

12. After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This 
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management's Discussion·alid'Analysls, 

(b) the financial st~tements and notes of the Go\lernmental Unit(s) and all of its component unill! ~r~~arl?d in 
accordance wifh GAAP, (c) supplementary informati9n requested (?,ythe Governmental Unlt(s) or·riq.JirEid for full 
disclosure und(?r the law, and (d) the Auditor's opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shal) fµrnis_h the 
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board upon completion. , • 

13. If the iJUPit firm is required by the NC State Soard, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee,_ or the 
Secretary of t~e LGC to have a pre-issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the 
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement th~t the 
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall b'e performed 
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-Issuance review report shall accompany the 
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff. 

Paga3 

37 



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 1212024 

14. The Auditor shall submit the report of audit In PDF format to LGC Staff. For audits of units other than 
hospitals, the audit report should be submitted when (or prior to) submitting the final Invoice for services 
rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for 
inspection, review and copy in the offices of the LGC by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions-to 
these reports shall be sent to the Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements, excluding the 
Auditors' opinion, may be used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings by municipal bond 
rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
and for other lawful purposes of the Governmental Uni\(s) without requiring consent of the Auditor. If the LGC 
Staff determines that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit's (Units') financial statements and/ 
or the compliance section, those corrections shall be provided within three business days of notification unless 
another deadline is agreed to by LGC Staff. 

15. Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than 
necessary under ordinary circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board In writing of the need for 
such additional Investigation and the additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the 
Secretary of the LGC, this contract may be modified or amended to include the increased time, compensation, 
or both as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor. 
16. If an.flpp[o.ve,d. contract need,s to b.~ modified or amended for any reason, the change shall ~e made In 
writlng an1!,pre-audl\ed if the cl;tange inc!udes a change In audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to 
hospitals). Tliis amended con\ract s~1;1II be opmpleted In full, including a written explanation of the change, 
signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secreta!Y of the LGC for 
approval. No.change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary ~f the LGC .. 

17. A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Audiior and the 
Governmental Unlt(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit 
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In' case of conflict 
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the-terms of this contract shall taRe 
prececlence.-Engagemeiifleffer terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting 
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in Item 30 of this contract. Engagement letters containing 
indemnlficatlbn clauses shall not be accepted bY t:GC Staff. 

18. Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment. 

19. ._A .s1:1,par!jte contract should not be mad~ for each division to be .audited or report to be submi!led. If a. 
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and 
a sep?f~tf ,11udit report is issued, a separate audit contract is' required. If a separate report is nqt to be issued 
and the,DPPU !S included In the primary go\/e'rnment audit, the DPCU shall be named along wit~ the primary 
gove'rnmenf"on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and 
finance officer also shall·be Included on this contract 

20. T~e contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requirement does not apply to hqspitals), and 
physical!,Y, signed by all parties including Governmental Unif(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to 
the Secretary of the LGC. 

21. ·The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff. of the LGC, shall notify 
the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the 
contract is approved. 

22. Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners' Retention of 
Client Records Rule 21 NCAGOBN .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well 
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be famlllar with the requirements of this rule prior to 
requesting the return of records. 

Page4 

38 



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 12/2024 

23. This contract may be terminated at any time by mutual consent and agreement of the Governmental 
Unit(s) and the Auditor, provided that (a) the consent to terminate is in writing and signed by both parties, 
(b) the parties have agreed on the fee amount which shall be paid to the Auditor (if applicable), and (c) no 
termination shall be effective until approved in writing by the Secretary of the LGC. 

24. The Governmental Unit's (Units') failure or forbearance to enforce, or waiver of, any right or an event 
of breach or default on one occasion or instance shall not constitute the waiver of such right, breach or 
default on any subsequent occasion or Instance. 

25. There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto 
that shall be enforceable unless entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved 
by the Secretary of the LGC. 

26. E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor 
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of 
NCGS Chapter 64, A(licle 2. 

27. Applicable to audits with fiscal year ends of June 30, 2020 and later. For all non-attest services, 
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and 
Government Auditing Standards, 2018 Revision (as applicable). Preparing financial statements in their 
entirety shall be deemed a "significant threat'' requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to reduce the 
threat to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the Auditor 
cannot complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the 
documentation of this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be Included ln the audit 
workpapers. 
All non-attest servlce(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be 
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable 
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for 
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE, 
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion. If the Auditor 
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannot be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both 
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the 
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit. 

28. Applicable to audits with fiscal year ends of June 30, 2021 and later. The auditor shall present 
the audited financial statements Including any compliance reports to the government unit's governing body or 
audit committee In an official meeting in open session as soon as the audited financial statements are 
available but not later than 45 days after the submission of the audit report to the Secretary. The auditor's 
presentation to the government unit's governing body or audit committee shall include: 

a) the description of each finding, including all material weaknesses and significant deficiencies, as 
found by the auditor, and any other issues related to the internal controls or fiscal health of the 
government unit as disclosed in the management letter, the Single Audit or Yellow Book reports, or 
any other communications from the auditor regarding internal controls as required by current auditing 
standards set by the Accounting Standards Board or its successor; 
b) the status of the prior year audit findings; 
c) the values of Financial Performance Indicators based on information presented in the audited 
financial statements; and 
d) notification to the governing body that the governing body shall develop a "Response to the 
Auditor's Findings, Recommendations, and Fiscal Matters," if required under 20 NCAC 03 .0508. 

29. Information based on the audited financial statements shall be submitted to the Secretary for the 
purpose of Identifying Financial Performance Indicators and Financial Performance Indicators of Concern. 
See 20 NCAC 03 .0502(c)(6). 

Pages 

39 



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 12/2024 

30. All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the 
following numbered paragraphs shall be deleted (See Item 17 for clarification). 

31. The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and Invoices is subject to change. Auditors 
and units should use the submission process and Instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer 
to the N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at https://www.nctreasurer.com/state-and-loca1-
government-finance-divlsion/local-government-commiss1on/submitting-your-audit 

32. All communications regarding audit contract requests for modificatlpn or official approvals will be 
sent to the email addresses provided on the signature pages that follow. 

33. Modifications to the language and terms contained in this contract form (LGC-205) are not 
allowed. 

Page6 

40 



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

Rev. 12/2024 

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional 
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Government Auditing standards,2018 Revision. Refer to Item 27 of 
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts 
presented to the LGC without this Information will be not be approved. 
Financial statements were prepared by: IZJAudilor □Governmental Unit □Third Party 

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or 
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the non-attest services and accept responsibility for the 
results of these services: 
Name: Title and Unit I Company: 

"'IS...;h .. ar-'"o-'-n __ P-'en .... n_,_y _______ _,I !Finance Officer/ Elizabethtown 
Email Address: 

lspenny@elizabethtownnc.org 

OR Not Applicable D (Identification of SKE lndivldual on the LGC-205 Contract is not applicable for 
GAAS-only audits or audits with FYEs prior to June 30, 2020.) 

2. Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports 
(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be Included in the 
engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC. See 
Items 8 and 13 for details on other allowable and excluded fees. 

3. The audit fee information Included in the table below for both the Primary Government Fees aria the DPCU 
Fees (if applicable) should be reported as a speqific dollar alTJOUnt of audit fees for the year under this contract. If 
any language other than an amount is included here, the contract will be returned to the audit form. for correction. 

4. Prior to the submission of the completed audited financial report and applicable compliance reports subject to 
this contract, or to an amendment to this contract (if required) the Auditor may submit interim invoices for 
approval for services rendered under this contract to the Secretary of the LGC, not to exceed 75% of the billings 
for·the unit's last annual audit that was su9mitted ~c;> the Secretary of the LGC. All invoices for services rendered 
In an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503 shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before 
any payment Is made. Payment before approval is a violation of law. (This paragraph not appllcable to contracts 
and invoices associated with audits of hospitals). 

Primary Government Unit Town of Elizabethtown 

Audit Fee (financial and compliance if applicable) $ 35000 

Fee per Major Program (if not included above) $ 3500.00 if applicable 

Additional Fees -Not Included Above (if applicable): 
' ' . 

Financial Statement Preparation (Incl. notes a~d RSI) $ 

All Other Non-Attesi Services $ 

TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $ 45,500 

Discretely Presented Component Unit NA 

Audit Fee (financial and compliance If applicable) $ 

Fee per Major Program (if not included above) $ 

Additional Fees Not Included Above (if applicable): 

Financial Statement Preparation (Incl. notes and RSI) $ 

All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $ 

Page7 

41 



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

AUDIT FIRM ,,. 
Audit Firm• 
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
AuthQrized Firm Representative (type~ br printed)* Signafure• 
Gregory S Adams, CPA 
Date• Emal! Address• 

gadams@tpsacpas.com . 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Governm~ntal Un!!* 
Town of Elizabethtown 
Dale Governing Board Approved Audit Contract" 
(Enter date In box to riijht} ' • Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed)• Signature* 
Sylvia Cathpoell 
Date Email Address• 

syl1iiac@campbelloil.net 
' . . . 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or "NA") Signature 
NA 
Date Email Address 

GOVERNM~NTAL UNIT - ~RE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 

Required by G.S.159-28(a1)'or'G.S.115C-441(a1). Not applicable to hospital contracts. 

Rev.12/2024 

' 

.. 

This Instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. • 

Sum Obligated by This Transaction: $ 4$,500 

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer* (1ype<1orpnnt•• Slgn~ture• 

Sharon Penny 
Date of Pre-Audit Certificate• Email Address• 

spenny@elizabethtownnc.org 

PageB 

42 



LGC-205 

DPCU* 
NA 

CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

SIGNATURE PAGE- DPCU 
(complete only if applicable) 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit Contract• 
(Enter date In box to right) 
DPCU C~airperson (typed or printed)* Signature• 

Date• Email Address* 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or "NA") Signature 
NA 
Date Email Address 

DPCU - PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 

Rev. 1212024 

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441 (a1J. Not applicable to hospital contracts. 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

Sum Obligated by this Transaction: $ 

DPCU Finance Officer (typed or printed)* Signature* 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate• Email Address* 

Remember to print this form, and obtain all 
required signatures prior to submission. 

Page9 

43 



II AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.4 

Item Cover Page 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

DATE: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ITEM TYPE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

Juanita Hester 

Request 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

Design-Build Contract with Metcon, Inc. - Vulcan Air 
Manufacturing Facility 

Planning Director Rusty Worley may be called upon to present this 
agenda item. 

Copy of Design-Build Contract provided. 

Council is requested to approve the Design-Build Contract with 
Metcon, Inc. in the amount of $155,000.00 and to authorize Town 
Manager Dane Rideout to sign all documentation for this project. 

Design Build Contract with Metcon - 2.3.25.pdf 

44 



Document A141® - 2014 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder 

~GREEMENT made as of the 11 day of December in the year 2024 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 

BETWEEN the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

ri
Town of Elizabethtown 
05 W Broad Street 

Elizabethtown, NC 28337 

and the Design-Builder: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

~

Metcon, Inc. 
763 Comtech Drive 
Pembroke, NC 28372 
10-521-8013 

for the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 

canair Manufacturing 
ort Corporate Park, Elizabethtown, North Carolina 
struction of an approximately 40,736 square foot building divided into 36,000 square foot of 
ufacturing and 4,300 Square foot of office space. Building to be single story with 29' eave 

ght. Building will be a Pre-engineered Metal building. 

The Owner and Design-Builder agree as follows. 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 

added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 

AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 

information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 

vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 

has added necessary infonnation 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text. 

This document has important legal 

consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged w ith respect 
to its completion or modification. 

Consultation with an attorney is also 
encouraged with respect to 
professional licensing requirements 

in the jurisdiction where the Project is 
located. 

lnit. 
AIA DocumentA141 -2014. Copyright© 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects." "American Institute of Architects." "AIA." the AIA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademar1<s of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 1 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents• Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

45 



TABLE OF ARTICLES 

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS 

3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT 

4 WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

5 WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

6 CHANGES IN THE WORK 

7 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

8 TIME 

9 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION 

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

11 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 

12 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 

13 . TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

1.4 CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

15 MiSCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

16 SCOPE.OFTHEAGREEMENT 

TABLE OF EXHIBITS 

A DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMEN'J: 

B JNSU)¼NCEANDBONDS 

C SUSTAINABLE PROJECTS 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 Owner's Criteria 
This Agieemeiitis based on the Owner's Criteria set forth in this Section 1.1. 
(Note the disposition/or the following items by inserting the requested information or a statement suoh as "not applicable" or "unknown 
at time of execution. "Jf the Owner intends to provide a set of design documents, and the requested information is contained in the design 
documents, identify the design documents and insert "see Owner's design documents" where appropriate.) 

§ 1:1.1 The Owner's program for the Project: 
(Set forth the program, identify documentation in which the program is set forth, or state the manner in which the program will be 
developed.) 

Exhibit A' - ".RFQ". Design for this phase of work is limited to the building line excluding sprinkler design. Building pad, sprinkler 
systems and all other sitework including utilities and their design by others. 

§ 1.1.2 The Owner's design requirements for the Project and related documentation: 

AIA DocumentA141 -2014. CQpyrfght ®2004 and 2014. All rights reseived. "The Amerlcan lnslltuta of Arohitects,n "American Institute of Archltects,n "AIA," theAIA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademerka of The American Institute of Architects. ihls document Wa& produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 2 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025;1s not for resale, ls licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AlA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolatlons, e-mail doclnfo@alacontraots.com. 
User Notes: (1801617716) 

46 



lnlt. 

(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the documentation that contains the Owner's design requirements, including any pe,formance 
specifications far the Project.) 

Exhibit A' "RFQ" 

§ 1.1.3 The Project's physioal characteristics: 
(Identify or describe, if appropriate, size, location, dimensions, or other pertinent i,iformatlon, such as geotechnical reports; site, 
/ioundary and topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public and private utilities and services; legal description 
of the site; etc.) 

Construction of an approximate 40,736 square foot building divided into 36,000 square foot of manufacturing and 4,300 Square foot of 
office spac.e. B11ilding to be single story with 29' eave height. Building will be a combination of Pre-eogineered Mets! building and stick 
framing out oflight gauge metal studs, Utilities will be S' outside the building line. Sitework, utilities and building pad by others 

§ 1. U The Owner's anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any: 
(Identify the Owner~s Su,talnable Objective for the Project such as Sustainability Certification, benefit to the environment, enhancement 
to the health. and well-being of building occupants, or improvement of energy ejfiolenoy, ]fthe Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, 
lnco1p0rate.AIA Document Al 41™-2014, Exhibit C, Sustainable Projects, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and Work 
related to the Owner's Sustainable Objective) 

Not Applicable 

§ .. 1.1.5 Incentive programs the Owner inteods to pursue for the Project, including those related to the Sustainable Objective, and any 
deadlines for receiving the inceotives that are dependeot on, or related to, the Design-Builder's services, are as follows: 
{ldeniifj, incentive programs the Owner intends to pursue for the Project and deadlines for submitting or applying for the Incentive 
programsJ 

N!lt Applicable . 

§ 1.1.6 The Owner's budget for the Work to be provided by tho Design-Builder is set forth below: 
(Provide total for Owner's budget, and if known, a line item breakdown of costs.) 

§ 1. 1.7 The Owner's design and construction milestone dates: 

.1 Design phase milestone dates: 

TBD 

.2 Submission of Design-Builder Proposal: 

TBD 

·.3 Phased completion dates: 

Nol Applicable 

.4 Substantial Completion date: 

TBD 

,5 . Other milestone dates: 

Not Applicable 

AIA DooumentA141 -2014. Copyright© 2004 and 2014, All rights reserved, "The American Institute of Architects,~ "American lnstitute of Archlteots,"''ArA," the AJA 
Logo, and "AIA Contraot Documentsn are trademarks of The Amatfcan lnst!lute of Archltects, This i;locument was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 3 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/2812025, Is not for resale, ls licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documentse Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolatlone, a-mall t;l'oclnfo@alacontraots.oom. 
UuerNotes: (1901817716) 

47 



nit. 

I 

§ 1.1.8 The Owner requires the Design-Builder to retain the following Architect, Consultants and Contractors at the Design-Builder's 
cost: 
(List name, legal status, address and other iiiformalion.) 

.1 Architect 

Morse Architecture PLLc 
POBox2263 
Leland, NC 28451 

.2 Consultants 

Costa\ Plains Engineering 
295 Locklear Road 
Pembroke, NC 28372 

FDR Engineers PLLC 
Raleigh, NC 

.3 Contractors 

TBD 

§ 1.1,9 Additional Owner's Criteria upon which the Agreement is based: 
(Identify special characteristics or needs of the Project not identtjled elsewhere, such as historic preservation requirements.) 

Not Applicable 

§ 1.1, 10 The Design-Builder shall confinn that the information included in the Owner's Criteria complies with applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities. 

§ 1.1.1. 0.1 If the Owner's Criteria conflicts with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of 
public authorities, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner of the conflict. 

§ 1.1.11 Ifthere is a change in the Owner's Criteria, the Ownerand the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in accordance with 
Article 6. 

§ 1.1.12 lfthe Design•Bullder and Contractor intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other information or documentation in 
digital form, orutilize building inforinatfon modeling, they shall endeavor to establish written protocols governing the development, use, 
transmission, reliance, and exchange of digital data, including building information modeling. 

§ 1.2 Project Team 
§ 1.2.1 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 7 ,1.1: 
(f,ist name, addrrss and other iiiformationJ 

Rusty Worley 
805 W Broad Street 
Elizabethtown, NC 
910-374-3719 

§. 1.2.2 The per.sons or entities, in addition to the Owner's representative, who are required to review the Design-Builder's Submittals are 
as follows: 
(List name, address and other iiiformation.) 

Not Applicable 

AIA DocumentA141-2014. Copyrlght ©2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. "The Amerlaan lnsUluta of Archltects,""Amerlcan Institute ot Archlteotst "A1Ai" the AIA 
Logo, and MAIA Contract Documents" are tradetnarke of The American Institute of Architects. This document wae produced at 09:11:33 ET on ,0111 S/2025 under 4 
Order No,2114422890 which exptree on 02/28/.2.025, Is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, end may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documahts® Terms of Sj!jrvfce. To report copyright vlolatlona, e-mall doclnfo@alacontraots.com. 
User Notes: (1901617718) 

48 



lnit. 

§ 1.U The Owner will retain the following consultants and separate contractors: 
(List discipline, scope of work; and, if known, identijj, by name and address.) 

W.K. Dickson -Airport Project Lead 
BarnWII Contracting - Sitework 

§ 1.2.4 The Design-Builder identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 3, 1.2: 
(List name, address and other informatlonJ 

Mark Floyd 
763 Comtech Drive 
Pembroke, NC 28372 
910-374-5623 

§ 1.2.5 Neither the Owner's northe Design-Builder's representative shall be changed without ten days' written notice to the other party, 

§ 1.3 Binding Dispute Resolution 
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Section 14.3, the method of binding dispute resolution shall be the 
following: . 
(Check the appropriate box. Qthe Owner and Design-Builder do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below, or do not 
subsequently agree. In writing to a binding dispute resolution other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation In a court of 
competent jurisdiction,) 

[ X ] Arllitration pursuant to Section 14.4 

[ ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

] Other: (Specify) 

§ 1.4 Definitions 
§ 1.4.1 Deslgn-Bulld Documents. The Design-Build Documents consist of this Agreement between Owner and Design-Builder and its 
attached Exhibits (hereinafter, the "Agreement"); other documents listed in this Agreement; and Modifications issued after execution of 
this Agi:~ment. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract signed by both parties, including the Design-Build 
Amendment, (2) a Change Order, or (3) a Change Directive. 

§ 1.4.2 The Contract. Tbe: Design-Build Documents form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement 
between the parties and supetsedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be 
amended or modified only by a Modification, The Design-Build Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of 
any kind between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the Design-Builder. 

§ 1 A.3 The Work. The term "Work" means the design, construction and related services required to fulfill the Design-Builder's 
obligations under the Design-Build Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and includes all labor, materials, equipment 
and services provided or to be provided by the Design-Builder. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project. 

§ 1.4.4 The Project. The Project is the total design and construction of which the Work performed under the Design-Build Documents 
may be the whole or a part, and may include design and construction by the Owner and by separate contractors. 

§ 1 .. 4., Instruments of Service. Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, 
of the tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Design-Builder, Contractor(s), Architect, and Consultant(s) under their 
respective agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys, models, sketches, drawings, 
specifications, digital models and other similar materials. 

AIA DooumentA141-2014. Copyright© 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. '"TheAmerl<lan Institute of Arohltecta,'"'Amerloan lnslltute ot Architects," "AIA;thaAJA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents~ are trademarks of The Amerloan Institute of Arc:hlteots. Thls document was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 5 Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025, ls not for resale, Is l!tensed for at1e-tlme use only, and may only be used In accordance wlth the AJA Contract 
Documents!;) Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mall doclnro@alacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

49 



lnit. 

I 

§ 1.4.6 Submittal. A Submittal is any submission to the Owner for review and approval demonstrating how the Design-Builder proposes 
to conform to the Design-Build Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Design-Build Documents require Submittals. 
Submittals include, but are not limited to, shop drawings, product data, and samples. Submittals are not Design-Build Documents unless 
incorporated into a Modification. 

§ 1.4.7 Owner. The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Design-Build 
Documents as if singular in number. The term "Owner" means the Owner or the Owner's authorized representative, 

§ 1.4.8 Design-Builder. The Design-Builder is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term "Design-Builder" means the Design-Builder or the Design-Builder's 
authorized representative. 

§ 1.4.9 Consultant. A Consultant is a person or entity providing professional services for the Design-Builder for all or a portion of the 
Work, and is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. To the eKtent required by the relevant 
jurisdiotioµ, the Consultant shall be lawfully licensed to provide the required professional services. 

§ 1.4, 10 Architect. The Archiiect is a person or entity providing design services for the Design-Builder for all or a portion of the Work, 
and ls lawfully licensed to practice architecture in the applicable jurisdiction. The Architect ls referred to throughout the Design-Build 
Documents as if singular in number. 

§ 1.4.11 Contractor.A Cohtraotor Is a person or entity performing all or a portion of the construction, required in connection with the 
Work, for the Design-Builder. T1le Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, ifrequired in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The 
Contractor .Is. refeJTed to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number and means a Contractor or an authorized 
representative of the Contractor; 

§ 1.4.12 Confldentlai Information. Confidential Information is information containing confidential or business proprietary information 
that Is clearly marked as "confidential." 

§ 1..4.13 Cont.racl Time. Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, as set forth in 
the Design-Build Amendment for Substantial Completion of the Work. 

§. 1.4.14 Day. The term "day" as used in the Design-Build Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically defined. 

§ 1.4.15 Contract Sum. The Contract Sum Is the amount to be paid to the Design-Builder for performance of the Work after execution of 
the Design-Build Amerujment, as identified in Article A. I of the Design-Build Amendment. 

ARTICLE 2 COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
§ 2.1 Compensation for Work Performed Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
§ •2, 1 ;1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for Work performed prior to EKecution of the Design-Build Amendment shall be made 
montb)y. For fue Design-Builder's performance of Work prior to the e"eoution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Owner shall 
compensate the Design-Builder as follows: 
(Illflert amount of; or basis for, compensation, including compell!lation for any Sustainability Services, or indicate the exhibit in which 
the information is provided. If there will be a limit on the total amount of oompensationfor Work pe,fonned prior to the execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment, state the amount of the limit) 

Design Services= $155,000.00 Lump Sum. Billed monthly 

§ 2.1.2 The hourly billing rates for services oftbe Design-Builder and the Design-Builder's Architect, Consultants and Contractors, if 
any, are set forth below. 
(lf applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 

For work beyond the scope of this agreement if set forth by an hourly rate. 

Individual or Position 
Architect 
Engineer 
Administrative 

Rate 
$125 per hour 
$125 per hour 
$50perhour 

AIA Docutt1ahtA141 -2014, Copyrlght@2004 and 2014. All r!Uhts reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Archltecrts,""AIA,8 the AIA 
Logo, and "AJA contract Documents~ are trademarks of The American Institute of Archlteota. Thie document was produced at 09:11 :33 er on 01/16/2025 under 6 Order No.2114422690 wtilch expires on 02/28/20:m, Is not for resale, Is Ileen sad for one-time uaa only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
DooumantslJl rerms of Service. To report copyrlght violations, e-mall doclnfo@alacontraots.com. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

50 



lnlt. 

Estimator 
Project Executive 
Project Manager 
Superintendent 

$75perhour 
$225 per hour 
$175.per hour 
$150perhour 

§ 2.1,3 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
§ 2,1.3.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation set forth in Section 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 and include expenses, directly 
related to the Project, incurred by the Design"Builder and the Design"Bullder's Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, as follows: 

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence; 

.2 Dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project web sites, and extranets; 

.3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project; 

.4 Pi;intitig, reproductions, plots, standard form documents; 
,5 Postage, handling and delivery; 
.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner; 
.7. Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by the Owner; 
.8 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; and 
.9 Other Project-related expenditures, if authorized ill advance by the Owner, 
,.10 If the Owner agrees to procure any items prior to the establlshment of the Design Builder Amendment, the Owner shall 
p_ro,;,ure the items on terms and conditions acceptable to the Construction Manager. All items and markups shall be agreed to in 
the form of a change order to this agreement. 

§ 2.1.~.2 For Reimbursable Eitpenses, the compensation shall be the expenses the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder's Architect, 
Consultants ~d Contractors incurred, plus an'administrat!ve fee of Ten percent ( 10 %) of the expenses incurred. 

§ 2,1.4 Payment$ !1> the Design-Builder Prior T1> Execution of Deslgn•Bulld Amendment 
§ 2.1.4.1 Payments a:redue and payable upon presentation of the Design"Builder's invoice. Amounts unpaid thirty ( 30 ) days after the 
invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or ill the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the 
plinclj,al place ofbusiness of the Design"Builder, 
(Insert rate of monthly .or annual interest agreed upon.) 

one poi!lt five percent % 1.5 

§ 2.1.4.2 Records of Reimbursable Expenses and services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at 
mutually convenient times for a period of two years followillg execution of the Desiga-Build Amendment or termination of this 
Agreement, whichever occlU'.S first. 

§ 2.2 Contract Sum and Payment for Work Performed After Execution of Design,Build Amendment 
For the Design<Builder' s performance of the Work after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Owner shall pay to the 
Design-Builder the Contract Sum in current funds as agreed in the Design-Build Amendment. 

ARTICLE 3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT 
§ 3.1 General . 
§ 3.1.1 The Design"Builder shall comply with any applicable licensing requirements in the jurisdiction where the Project ls located. 

§ 3.1.2 The 'r>eslgn"Builder shall designate in writing a representative who is authorized to act on the Design-Builder's behalf with 
respect to the Project. 

§ 3.1.3 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in accordance with the Design"Build Documents. The Desiga-Builder shall not be 
relieved of the obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents by the activities, tests, inspections or 
approvals of the Owner. 

§ 3.1,3.1 The Desiga"Builder shall perform the Work in compliance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
tegulatlcms, or l1c1Wful orders of public authorities, If the Design-Builder performs Work contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, the Design-Builder shall assume responsibility for such Work and 
shall bear the costs attributable to correction. 

AIA OooumentA141-2014, Copyright© 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Archlteots,~MAmerlcan [n$tltUta of Atchltec\$,"HAlA," the AIA 
Logo, and uAIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The Amerlc.an Institute of Architects. Thie dacument was produced at 09:11 :33 ET on 01(16/2025 under 7 
Order No,2114422690 whfch expires on 02/28/2025, ls not for reeiille, le licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with 1he AIA Contract 
Documents® Tenns of Service. To report copyright violations, e~maJI doolnfo@alacontraots.com. 
User Notes: (1901617718) 

51 



lnlt. 

§ 3. 1.3.2 Neither the Design-Builder nor any Contractor, Consultant, or Architect shall be obligated to perform any act which they 
believe will violate any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities. If the 
Design-Builder determines that implementation of any instruction received from the Owner, including those in the Owner's Criteria, 
would cause a violation of any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules snd regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, 
the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner in writing. Upon verification by the Owner that a change to the Owner's Criteria is required to 
_remedy _the violation, the Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in accordance with Article 6. 

§ 3. 1.4 The Design-Builder shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Design-Builder's employees, Architect, 
Consultants, Contractors, and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 3, 1.5 General Consultation. The Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct periodic meetings with the Owner to review matters such 
as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. 

§ 3.,1 .6 When aj)plicable law requires that services be performed by licensed professionals, the Design-Builder shall provide those 
services through qualified, licensed professionals, The Owner understands and agrees that the services of the Design-Builder's Architect 
and ·the Design'Builder's other.Consultants are performed in the sole interest of, and for the exclusive benefit of, the Design-Builder. 

§. 3.1, 7 The Design,Builder, with the assistance of the Owner, shall prepare and file documents required to obtain necessary approvals of 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

§ 3.1.8 Progress Rep~rts . 
. § 3.1.8.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the Owner informed of the progress and quality of the Work. On a monthly basis, or otherwise as 
agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall submit written progress reports to the Owner, showing estimated 
percentages of completion and other information identified below: 

.1 Work completed for the period; 

.2 Project schedule status; 

.3 Submittal schedule and status report, including a summary of outstanding Submittals; 

.4 Responses W requests for information to be provided by the Owner; 

.s· Approved Change Orders and Change Directives; 

.6 Pending Change Order and Change Directive status reports; 

.1 Tests and inspection reports; 

.8 Status report of Work rejected by the Owner; 

.9 Status of Claims previously submitted in accordance with Article 14; 
, 10 Cumulative total of the Cost of the Work to date including the Design-Builder's compensation and Reimbursable 

Expenses, if any; 
.11 . Current Project oash-flow and forecast reports; and 
, 12 Additioruil information as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder. 

§ 3.1.8.2 In addition,.where ·the Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder 
shall include the following additional information in its progress reports: 

.1. . Design-Builder's work force report; 

.2 Equipment utillzat.ion report; and 

.3 Cost smnmary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates. 

§ 3.1,9 Deslgn-.Builder's Schedules 
§ • 3.1.9.1 The Design-B11ilder, promptly after execution of this Agreement, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's information a 
schedule for the Work. The schedule, including the time required for design and construction, shall not exceed time limits current under 
the Design-Build Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project, shall be 
related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Design-Build Documents, shall provide for expeditious and practicable 
execution:of the Work, and shall include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner's review and for approval of submissions 
by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

§ 3.1.9.2 ·The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the Owner. 

§ 3.1.10 Certifications. Upon the Owner's written request, the Design-Builder shall obtain from the Architect, Consultants, and 
Contractors, snd ful'nish to the Owner, certifications with respect to the documents and services provided by the Architect, Consultants, 
and Contractors ( a) that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, the documents or services to which the certifications 

AIA Document A141-2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. ''The American Institute of Architects/ wAmerfcan lnetltute of Architects,~ ~AIA/'the1 AIA 
lo 90, and wAIA Contract Documents'" are trademarks of Iha Amerlca11 lnatltute of Architects. This document was produood at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/16/2026 under 8 
Order No,2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025, Is not for resala1 Is llcensed for one-flme use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Document&® Terms of Service. To report oopyrfghtvlolatlons, e-mail doc!nfo@alacontraots.com. 
user Notes: (1901617716) 

52 



lnlt. 

relate (i) are consistent with the Design-Build Documents, except to the extent specifically identified in the certificate, and (ii) comply 
with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities governing the design of the 
Project; and (b) that the Owner and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the accnracy of the representations and statements 
contained in tho certifications. The Design-Builder's Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute certificates 
or consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services. 

§ 3.1.11 Design-Builder's Submittals 
§ 3.1.11.1 Prior to submission of any Submlttals, the Design-Builder shall prepare a Submittal schedule, and shall submit the schedule 
for the Owner's approval. The Owner's approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. The Submittal schedule shall (1) be 
coo)'dinated with the Design-Builder's schedule provided in Section 3.1.9.1, (2) allow the Owner reasonable time to review Submittals, 
an<\ (3) be periodically updated to reflect the progress of the Work. If the Design-Builder fails to submit a Submittal schedule, the 
Design-Builder·shall notbe entitled to any increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review 
of Submittals. 

§ 3, 1.11.2 By providlng Subri:Jittals the Design-Builder represents to the Owner that it has (1) reviewed and approved them, 
(2) determioed and verified materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so and (3) checked 
and coordinated the information contained within such Submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Design-Build 
Documents, 

§ 3.1.11.3 The Design-Bu!lµer shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Design-Build Documents require Submittals until the 
Owner has approved the respective Submittal. 

§ 3.1.11 A The Work shall be in accordance with approved Submittals except that the Design-Builder shall not be relieved of its 
responsibility to perform the Work consistent with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. The Work may deviate from the 
Design:Build D.ocuments only if the Design-Builder has notified the Owner in writing of a deviation from the Design-Bnild Documents 
lit the time of the Submittal and a Modlfloation is executed authorizing the identified deviation. The Design-Builder shall not be relieved 
of responsibility for errors or omissions in Submittals by the Owner's approval of the Submittals. 

§ 3. 1.11.5 All professional design services or certifications to be provided by the Design-Builder, including all drawings, calculations, 
specifications, certifications, shop drawings and other Snbmittals, shall contain the signature and seal of the licensed design professional 
preparing them. Submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the licensed design professionals, if prepared by others, shall 
bear the licensed design professional'• written approval. The Owner and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, 
accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications or approvals perfonned by such design professionals. 

§ 3.1.12. Wan-anty. The Design-lluilder warrants to the Owner that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be of good 
quality and new unless the Design-Build Documents require or permit otherwise. The Design-Builder further warrants that the Work 
will conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents and will be free from defects, except for those inherent in the quality of 
the Work or otherwise expressly permitted by the Design-Build Documents. Work, materials, or equipment not conforming to these 
requirements may be considered defective. The Design-Builder's warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, 
alterations to the Work not executed by the Design-Builder, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear 
and tear and normal usage. If required by tho Owner, the Des.ign-Builder shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of 
materials and equipment.. 

§ :i.1.13 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights 
§ 3.1.13. f The Design-Builder shall pay all royalties and license fees. 

§ 3.1.13.2 The Design-Builder shall defend suits or claims for infringement of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and 
its separate contractors and consultants harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall not be responsible for such defense or loss when 
a.particular design, process or product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Owner, or where the copyright 
violations are required iu the Owner's Criteria. However, if the Design-Builder has reason to believe that the design, process or product 
required in.the Owner's Criteria is an infringement of a copyright or a patent, the Design-Builder shall be responsible for such loss unless 
such information is promptly furnished to the Owner. If the Owner receives notice from a patent or copyright owner of an alleged 
violation of a patent or copyright, attributable to the Design-Builder, the Owner shall give prompt written notice to the Design-Builder. 

§ 3.1.14 Indemnification 
§ 3.1.14.1 To the fullest extent pennitted by law, the Design-Builder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, including the 
Owner's agents and employees, from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, 

AIA DocumentA141 -2014, Copyright ©>2004 and 2014. All rlghts reserved, "The American Institute of Arohttects,"iiAmerlcan lne11tute of Archlteotst "AIA,"the AIA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract Oocurnents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. Thi$ document was produced at 09:11 :331:T on 01116/2025 under 9 Order No.21144226110 which expires on 02/28/2025, Is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance wllh the AIA Contract 
Documents@ Tenns of Service. To report copyright violatlons, e-mail doclnfo@alacontracts.com. 
Uaar Notea: (1901617716) 

53 



nit. 

arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, hut only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the 
Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they 
may he liable. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would 
otherwise· exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3. 1.14. 

§ 3.1.14.2 The indemnification obligation under this Section 3.1.14 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, 
compensation, or benefits payable by or for Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or anyone directly or iodirectly 
employed by them, under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. 

§ 3.1.15 Contingent Assignment of Agreements 
§ 3.1.15.1 Bach agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Design-Builder to the Owuer, provided that 

.1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owuer for cause, pursuant to Sections 13.1.4 or 
13.2.2, and only for those agreements that the Owuer accepts by written notification to the Design-Builder and the 
Architect, Consultants, and Contractors whose agreements are accepted for assignment; and 

,2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the Contract. 

When the Owuer aQCl>J)ts the assignment of an agreement, the Owner assumes the Design-Builder's rights and obligations under the 
agreement, 

§ 3.1.15.2 Upon.such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the compensation under the assigned 
agreement shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension. 

§ 3, t 15.3 Upon such assignment to the Owuer under this Section 3.1.15, the Owuer may further assign the agreement to a successor 
design-builder or other entity. If the Owuer assigns the agreement to a successor design-builder or other entity, the Owner shall 
nevertheless Temainlegally responsible for all of the successor design-builder's or other entity's obligations under the agreement. 

§ 3.1,16 Deslgn•Bullder'li Insurance and Bonds, The Design-Builder shall purchase and maiotain iosuranoe and provide bonds as set forth 
ln BxhibitB. 

ARTICLE 4 WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 
§ 4.1 General 
§ 4.1.1 Any ioformation submitted by the Design-Builder, and any ioterim decisions made by the Owuer, shall be for the purpose of 
facilitatiog the design process and shall not modify the Owuer's Criteria unless the Owuer and Design-Builder execute a Modification. 

§ 4.1.2 The Design-Builder shall advise the Owuer on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, and building systems 
and equipment, The Design-Builder shall also provide the Owuer with recommendations, consistent with the Owuer's Criteria, on 
construct.ability; availability Qfmaterials and labor; time requirements for procurement, installation and construction; and factors related 
to construction cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and 
possible cost reductions. 

§ 4.2 EvaluallQn of the Owne~s Criteria 
§ 4,2.1 The Design-Bm1der shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Owuer and any other necessary individuals or entities to 
discuss and review the Owuer's Criteria as set forth in Section 1.1. The Design-Builder shall thereafter again meet with the Owuer to 
discuss a preliminary evaluation of the Owuer's Criteria. The prelimioary evaluation shall address possible alternative approaches to 
design and construction of the Project and include the Design-Builder's recommendations, if any, with regard to accelerated or fast-track 
soheduling, procll!'eineb.t, or phased construction. The preliminary evaluation shall consider cost information, constructability, and 
procurement and. oonstiuction scheduliog issues. 

§ 4.2.2 After the Design-Builder meets with the Owuer and presents the preliminary evaluation, the Design-Builder shall provide a 
written report to the Owuer, summarizing the Design-Builder's evaluation of the Owner's Criteria. The report shall also include 

.1 • ·,allocations of program functions, detailing each function and their square foot areas; 

.2 .a preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work, and, if necessary, recommendations to adjust the Owner's Criteria to 
conform to the Owuer's budget; 

.3 a preliminary schedule, which shall include proposed design milestones; dates for receiving additional information from, 
or for work to he completed by, the Owuer; anticipated date for the Design-Builder's Proposal; and dates of periodic 
design review sessions with the Owner; and 

.4 the following: 

AIA DocumentA141 ~2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2014, All tights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,~ 11Amer1can Institute of Architects," "AIA/' the AIA 
Logo, and ~AIA Contract Documents~ are trademarks of The American l11sUtute of Arohftects. This document was produced at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/18/2025 under 10 
Order No.2114422690 whtoh expires on 02/28/2025, Is not for resale, is llcensetl for one--tlme use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AJA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service, To report copyright vlolattons, a-mall doclllfo@alaooritracts.oom. 
User Notes: (1901817716) 

54 



lnlt. 

I 

(List additional information, if any, to be included In the Design-Builder's written report.) 

NA 

§ 4.2.3 The Owner shall review the Design-Builder's written report and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder with written consent 
to proceed to the development of the Preliminary Design as described In Section 4.3. The consent to proceed shall not be understood to 
modify the Owner's Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification. 

§ 4.3 Prellmlnary Design 
§ 4.3.1 Upon the Owner's issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.2.3, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit a 
Preliminary Design to the Owner. The Preliminary Design shall include a report identifying any deviations from the Owner's Criteria, 
and shall include the following: 

, 1 ConfU'lllation of the allocations of program functions; 
.2 Site plan; 
,3 Building plans, sections and elevations; 
.4 Structural system; 
,5 Selections of major building systems, including but not limited to mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems; and 
,6 Outline specifications or sufficient drawing notes describing construction materials. 

The Preliminary Design may include some combination of physical study models, perspective sketches, or digital modeling, 

§ 4.3,2 The Owner shall review the Preliminary Design and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder with written consent to proceed to 
development of the Design-Builder's Proposal. The Preliminary Design shall not modify the Owner's Criteria unless the Owner and 
Design-Builder execute a Modification. 

§ 4.4 Design-Builder's Proposal 
§ 4.4.1 Upon the Owner's issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.3.2, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit the 
Design-Builder's Proposal to the Owner. The Design-Builder's Proposal shall include the following: 

.1 A list of the Preliminary Design documents and other information, Including the Design-Builder's clarifications, 
assumptions and deviations from the Owner's Criteria, upon which the Design-Builder's Proposal is based; 

.2 'J:'he proposed Contract Sum, including the compensation method and, if based upon the Cost of the Work plus a fee, a 
written statement of estimated cost organized by trade categories, allowances, contingencies, Design-Builder's Fee, and 
other items that comprise the Contract Sum; 

,3 The proposed date, t\i• Design-Builder shall achieve Substantial Completion; 
.4 An enumeration of any qualifications and exclusions, if applicable; 
.5 A lisfof the, Design-Builder's key personnel, Contractors and suppliers; and 
,6:, The date on whic,h the Design-Builder's Proposal expires. 

§ 4.4.2 Submission of the Design-Builder's Proposal shall constitute a representation by the Design-Builder that it has visited the site 
and become familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be completed. 

§ 4.4.3 lf the Ownerand Design-Builder agree on a proposal, the Owner andDeslgn-Bullder shall execute the Design-Build Amendmeot 
setting forth the terms of their agreemeot. 

ARTICLE 5 WO.RK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 
§ .5.1 Construction Documents 
§ 5, 1.1 Upon the exeoution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder shall prepare Construction Documents. The 
Construction Documents shall establish the quality levels of materials and systems required, The Construotion Documents shall be 
consistent with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 5.1,2 The Design-Builder shall provide the Construction Documents to the Owner for the Owoer's information, If the Owner discovers 
any deviations between the Construction Documents and the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall promptly notify the 
Deslgn-~uilder of such deviations in writiog. The Construction Documents shall not modify the Design-Build Documeots unless the 
Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification. The failure of the Owner to discover any such deviations shall not relieve the 
Design-Builder of the obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

AIA Document A141 -2014, Copyrlght@2004 and 2014. All tighU;; reaaNacl. "The American lnetltute of Archltecta,"~Amerlcan Institute of Archlteotst aAIA,"the AIA 
Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The Amerloan Institute of Archllacts. This document was produced at 09:11 :38 ET on 01/16/2026 under 11 
Order No,2114422690 whtch a>'i;lres on 02/2812025, is Mt for resale, ts l!censed for one-time use only, and may only be.used In accordance with the AJA Contract 
Documents• Terms of Service. To report copyrlghtvlolallons, e~mall docJnfo@elaeontracte.com. 
User Notes: {1901817716) 

55 



I 

§ 5.2 Construction 
§ 5.2.1 Commencement. Except as permitted in Section 5.2.2, oonsttuction shall not commence prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment. 

§ 5.2.2 If the Owner and Design-Builder agree in writing, construction may proceed prior to the execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment, However, such authorization shall not waive the Owner's right to reject the Design-Builder's Proposal. 

§ 5.2.3 The Design-Builder shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Design-Builder's best skill and attention. The Design-Builder 
shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, consttuction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures, and for 
coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Design-Build Documents give other specific instructions conceming 
these matters, 

§ 5,2.4 The.Design-Builder shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that such portions are 
in proper condition to receive.subsequent Work, 

§ 5.3 Labor and. Materials 
§ 5,3.1. Unle.ss otherwise provided in the Design-Build DocU111ents, the Design-Builder shall provide and pay for labor, materials, 
equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services, necessary 
for proper ex.ecution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent, and whether or not incorporated or to be 
incorpprated in the Work, 

§ 5.3;2 When a material .or system is specified in the Design-Build DooU111ents, the Design-Builder may make substitutions only in 
accordance with Article 6. 

§ 5.3.3 The Design-Builder shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Design-Builder's employees and other persons 
carryjng out the Wotk, The Design-Builder shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly skilled in tasks 
assigned to them. 

§ 5A Tax~s 
. The Desig11-Buildershall Jiay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes, for the Work provided by the Design-Builder, that are legally 
enacted when the Design-Build Amendment is executed, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to go into effect. 

§ 5.5 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
§ 5.5.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall secure and pay for the building permit as 
well as any other pennlt!i, fees, ·licenses, and inspections by gove111111ent agencies, necessary for proper execution of the Work and 
Substantial Completion of the Project. 

§ 5,5,2 The JJesign-Builder shall contply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
regulations, and.lawful order~ ofpublio authorities, applicable to performance of the Work. 

§ 5.5,3 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Design-Builder encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or otherwise 
concealed physicalconditlons that differ materially from those indicated in the Design-Build Documents or (2) unkoown physical 
conditions of an unusual nature (hat differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in 
oonsttuction activities of the character provided for in the Design-Build DocU111ents, the Design-Builder shall promptly provide notice to 
the Owner before·conditlons are disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Owner shall 
promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Owner determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the 
Design-Builder's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, shall recommend an equitable adjustment in the 
Contract S1111l or Contract Time, or both, If the Owner determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those 
indicated in the Design-Build Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Owner shall promptly notify the 
Design-Builder iii writing, stating the reasons. If the Design-Builder disputes the Owner's detennination or recommendation, the 
Design-Builder may proceed as provided in Article 14. 

§ 5,5.4 If, in the course of the Work, the Design-Builder encounters human remains, or recognizes the existence of burial markers, 
archaeological sites, or wetlands, not indicated in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall immediately suspend any 
operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner. Upon receipt of such notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action 
necessary to obtain gove111111ental authorization required to resU111e the operations. The Design-Builder shall continue to suspend such 
operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or 

AIA Document A 141 .... 2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," ''American lnatltuta of Architects; ''AlA," theAlA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract Documentsn ere trademarks of The American Institute of ArohltectS. Thls dOOument was produced at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 12 
Ordsr No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2026, Is not for resale, Is lloensed for one-time use only, and may anly be used In accordEmce with the AIA Contract 
Ooouments® Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolatlons, e-mail doclnfo@alaoontracte.com. 
Ussr Notes: (1901617116) 

56 



lnlt. 

features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be 
made as provided in Article 14. 

§ 5.6 Allowances 
§ 5.6.1 The Design--Builder shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Design-Build Documents. Items covered by 
allowances shall be supplied for such amounts, and by such persons or entitles as the Owner may direct, but the Design-Builder shall not 
be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Design-Builder has reasonable objection. 

§ 5,6.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, 
, 1 allowances shall cover the cost to the Design-Builder of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all required 

taxes, less applicable trade discounts; 
.2 the Design-Builder's costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other 

expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts, shall be included in the Contract Sum but not in the allowances; 
and 

.3 whenever costs.are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by Change Order. 
The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs and the allowances under 
Section 5,6,2.1 and (2) changes in Design-Builder's costs under Section 5,6,2.2. 

§ 5.6.3 The Owner shall make selections of materials and equipment with reasonable promptness for allowances requiring Owner 
selection, 

. § 5.7 Key Personnel, ~ontractors and Suppliers 
·§ 5.7.1 The Design-Builder shall not employ personnel, or contract with Contractors or suppliers to whom the Owner has made 
reasonable. and timely objection: The Design-Builder shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Design-Builder has 
made reasonable and timely objection, 

§ 5,7.2 Ifth.e Design-Builder changes any of the personnel, Contractors or suppliers identified in the Design-Build Amendment, the 
Design-Builder shall notify the bwner and provide the name and qualifications of the new personnel, Contractor or supplier. The Owner 
may reply within 14 days to the Design-Bnilder in writing, stating (1) whether the Owner has reasonable objection to the proposed 
personnel, Contractor or supplier or (2) that the Owner requires additional time to review, Failure of the Owner to reply within the 
14-day period shall constitute notice ofno reasonable objection. 

§ 5.7 .3 Except for those persons or entities already Identified or required in the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder, as soon 
as practicable after execution <>f the Oesign-Build Amendment, shall furnish in writing to the Owner the names of persons or entities 
(including those who.are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed for each principal portion of the 
Work. The Owner may reply within 14 days to the Design-Builder in writing stating (!) whether the Owner has reasonable objection to 
any such propos.ed person or entity or (2) that the Owner requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner to reply within the 
14-dayperi<Jd shall constitute notice ofno reasonable objection. 

§ 5.7.3.1 lfthe Owner has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall propose 
ano1herto whom the Owner has no reasonable objection. If the rejected person or entity was reasonably capable of performing the Work, 
the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an 
appropriate Change Order shall be issued before commencement of the substitute person or entity's Work, However, no increase in the 
Contract Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Design-Builder has acted promptly and responsively in 
submitting names as reg_uired. 

§ 5.8 Documents and Submitlals at the Site 
The Design-Builder shall maintain at 1he site for the Owner one copy of the Design-Build Documents and a current set of the 
Construction Documents, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made during constrnction, and one 
copy of approved Submittsls. The Design-Builder shall deliver these items to the Owner in accordance with Section 9, 10,2 as a record of 
the Work as constructed. 

§ 5.9 Use of Site 
The Design-Builder shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
regnlations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Design-Build Documents, and shall not unreasonably encumber the site with 
materials or equipment. 

AIA DaoumentA141-2014, Copyright© 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. "The Amerlc:an fnstitute of ArohltecUit QAmerican Institute of Archltects,""AfA," the AIA 
Logo, and ~AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/16/2026 under 13 
Order No.2114422690 which explrss nn 02/28/2025, rs not for resale, Is licensed for ona-trma usa 011Iy, atld may only be used In accordance with tha AIA Contract 
Douumente11 Terms of Service. io report copyright violallons, e-mall doolnfo@slacontraots.com. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

57 



lnlt. 

§ 5.1 0 Cutting and Patching 
The Design-Builder shall not cut, patch or otherwise alter fully or partially completed construction by the Owner or a separate conttaotor 
except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate conttactor; such consent shall not be llllreasonably withheld. The 
Design-Builder shall not llllreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate conttactor the Design-Builder's consent to cutting or 
otherwise altering the Work. 

§ 5.11 Cleaning Up 
§ 5.11.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused 
by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Design-Builder shall remove waste materials, rubbish, the 
Design-Builder's tools,. construction equipment, machinery aod surplus materials from aud about the Project. 

· § 5.11.2 If the Design-Builder fails to clean up as provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Owner may do so and Owner shall be 
entitled to reimbursement from the Design-Builder. 

§ 5.12 Access .to Work 
The Design-Builder shall provide the Owner snd its separate conttactors aod consultaots access to the Work in preparation snd progress 
wherever located, Tl\e Design-Bullder shall notify the Owner regarding Project safety criteria snd programs, which the Owner, snd its 
conttactprs i,nd consultants, shall comply with while at the site. 

§ 5.13 Con$tructlon by Owner or by Separate Contractors 
§ 5.13.1 Owner's Right to Pe.rform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts 
§ 5.13.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner's own forces; and to 
award separate oontr...,ts in connection with other portions of the Project, or other construction or operations on the site, under terms and 
conditions identical or substantially similar to this Conttact, including those terms and conditions related to insurance snd waiver of 
subrogation. The Owner shall notify the Design-Builder promptly after execution of any separate contract If the Design-Builder claims 
that delay or additional cost is involved because of such action by the Owner, the Design-Builder shall make a Claim as provided in 
Article 14, 

§ 5.13.1.2 When separate conttaots are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on the site, the 
term ''Design-Builder" in the Design-Build Documents in each case shall mean the individual or entity that executes each separate 
agreement with the Owner. 

§ 5.13.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner's own forces, aod of each separate conttactor, with the 
Work of the Design-Builder, who shall cooperate with them. The Design-Builder shall participate with other separate contractors and the 
Owner in revlewfag their construction schedules. The Design-Builder shall make any revisions to the construction schedule deemed 
necessary after II joint review snd mutual agreement. The construction schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the 
Design-Builder, separate contractors and the Owner until subsequently revised, 

§ 5.13, 1.4Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, when the Owner petforms construction or operations related to 
the Project with the Owner's own forces or separate contractors, the Owner shall be deemed to be subject to the same oh ligations, and to 
have .the same rights, 1hat apply to the Design.Builder under the Contract. 

§ 5.14 Mutual Responsibility 
§ 5.14.1 The Design-Builder shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction snd storage of their 
materials snd equipment snd performance of their activities, snd shall connect and coordinate the Design-Builder's construction and 
operations with theirs-as required by the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 5.14.2 If part of the Design-Builder's Work depends upon construction or operations by the Owner or a separate contractor, the 
Design-Builder shall, prior to proceeding wlth that portion of the Work, prepare a written report to the Owner, identifying apparent 
discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or separate conttactor that would render It unsuitable for proper 
execution and results of the Design-Builder's Work, Failure of the Design-Builder to report shall constitute sn acknowledgment that the 
Owner's or separate conttactor's completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Design-Builder's Work, 
except as to. defects not then reasonably discoverable. 

§ 5.14.3 The Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate contractor because of 
the Design-Builder's delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be responsible to the Design-Builder 

AIA Dooument A141 -2014. Copyright@2004 and 2014. All rlghts raseived. "The American Institute of Architects," •~merican Institute of Archlteols,-" "AIA,"the AIA 
Logo, and ~AIA Contract Oocuments" ere trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. lhls document was pro du cad at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/18/2026 under 14 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2026, Is not for resale, Is llceneed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terma of Service. To report copyrlght vlolatlonsi e-mall doclnfo@alacontracte.com. 
Uaer Noles: (1901617716) 

58 



lnit. 

I 

for costs the Design-Builder incurs because of a separate coutractor's delays, improperly timed activities, damage to the Work or 
defective construction. 

§ 5.14.4 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage the Design-Builder wrongfully causes to completed or partially completed 
construction or to property of the Owner or separate contractors as provided in Section 10.2.S. 

§ 5.14.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching the Work as the 
Design-Builder has with respect to the construction of the Owner or separate contractors in Section 5.10. 

§ 5.15 Owner's Right to Clean Up 
If a dispute arises among tho Design-Builder, separate contractors and the Owner as to the respousibility under their respective contracts 
for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the Owner may clean up and will allocate the 
cost among those responsible. 

ARTICLE 6 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 8.1 General 
§ 8.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the Contract, by Change 
Order or Change Directive, subject to the limitations ststed in this Article 6 and elsewhere in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 6.1.2 A Change. Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. The Owner may issue a Change 
Directlve without agreement by the Design-Builder. 

§ 6.1.3. Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Design-Build Documents, and the Design-Builder 
shall proceed pro~ptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order 01· Change Directive. 

§ 6.2 Change Orders 
A Change Order is a written instrument signed by the Owner and Design-Builder stating their agreement upon all of the following: 

.1 The change in the Work; 

.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to executiou of the Design-Build Amendment, the 
adjustment iu the Design-Builder's compensation; and 

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. 

§ • 6:.3 Change Directives 
§. 8 .. 3, 1 A Change Directive is a written order signed by the Owner directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if 
any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder's 
oompensatiori, or Contract Time. The Owner may by Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work 
within tlie general scope of the Contract consisting ofadditions, deletions or other revisiol)s, the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of 
the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation, aud Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. 

§ 6.3,2 A Change Directive shall be used in the absence of tots! agreement on the terms of a Change Order. 

§ 6.3.3 If the Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, 
an adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation, the adjustment shall be based on one of the following methods: 

.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating dats to permit evaluation; 

.2 • Unit prices stated iu the Design-Build Docµments or subsequently agreed upon; 

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or peroentsge fee; or 

.4 As provided in Section 6.3.7. 

§ 6.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally coutemplated 
are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Change Directive so that application of such unit prices to quantities of Work 
proposed wHI ·cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Design-Builder, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 6.3.5 Upon receipt of a Chauge Directive, the Design-Builder shall promptly proceed with the change in the Work involved and advise 
the Owner of the Design-Builder's agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, provided in the Change Directive for determining 
the proposed adjustmeut in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the 
Design-Builder's compensation, or Contract Time. 

AJA Document A141-2014, Copyr19ht ©2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. "The Amertcan lnsUtuta of Architects," "American Institute of Archltacts,'"'AIAt theAIA 
Logo, and ~AIA Contract DocumenUt are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. Th1s document was produced at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 15 
Order No.2114422690whlch expires on 02/28/2025, ls not for resale, Is llceneed for one-time use only, aHd may on(y be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documenta8 Terms of Sel'Vlce. To report copyright vlolatlons, e-mell doolnfo@alaoontracts.com. 
UsarNotas: (1901617716) 

59 



!nit. 

I 

§ 6.3.6 A Change Directive signed by the Design-Builder indicates the Design-BuiWer's agreement therewith, including adjustment in 
Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-BuiW Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation, and 
Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change 
Order . 

. § 6.3.7If the Design-Builder does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum or, if prior to 
execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the method for adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation, the Owner shall 
determine the method and the adjustment on the basis ofreasonable expenditures and savings of those performing the Work attributable 
to the change, including, in case of an increase, an amount for overhead and profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is 
set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable amount. In such case, and also under Section 6.3.3,3, the Design-Builder shall keep and present, 
in suoh form as the Owner may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided 
in the Design-Build Documents, costs for the pUiposes of this Section 6.3.7 shall be limited to the following: 

.1 Additional costs of professional services; 

.2 Costs oflabor, including social security, unemployment insurance, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, and 
wotkers' compensation insurance; 

.3 .Co,rts of materials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or consumed; 

.4 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Design-Builder or others; 

.5 Costs• of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related to the Work; and 

.6 Additional costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change. 

§ 6.3,8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Design-Builder to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net decrease in 
the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, in the Design-Builder's compensation, shall be actual net 
cost, ·When both ad<Utions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and 
profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change, 

§ 6.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Change Directive to the Owner, the Design-Builder may request payment for 
Work completed under the Change Directive in Applications for Payment, The Owner will make an interim determination for pwposes 
of certification for payment for those costs deemed to be reasonably justified, The Owner's interim determination of cost shall adjust the 
Contract Sun;i or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder's compensation, on the same basis as a 
Change Order, subject to the right of Design-Builder to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 14. 

§ 6.3.10 When the Owner and Design-Builder agree with a determination concerning the adjustments in the Contract Sum or, if prior to 
execution of the Desigu,BuildAmendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation and Contract Time, or otherwise reach 
agreement up.on the adjustments, such agreement shall be effuotive immediately and the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a 
Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or any part of a Change Directive. 

ARTIC~E 7 . OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 7. 1 General 
§ 7. t 1 The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Owner with respect to all 
Project matters requiring the Owner's approval or authorization. 

§ 7.1.2 The Owner shaU render decisions in a timely maimer and in accordance with the Design-Builder's schedule agreed to by the 
Owner, The Owner sha11 furnish to the Design-Builder, within 15 days after receipt ofa written request, information necessary and 
relevant for the Design-Builder to evaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic's lien rights. Such information sha11 include a correct 
statement of the recotd legal title to the property on which the Project is located, usually referred to as the site, and the Owner's interest 
therein. 

§ 7.2 Information and Services Required of the Owner 
§ 7.2.1 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Design-Build Documents with reasonable 
promptness. 

§ 7 .2.2 'fhe Owner sha11 provide, to the extent under the Owner's control and if not required by the Design-Build Documents to be 
provided by the. Design-Builder, the results and reports of prior tests, inspections or investigations conducted for the Project involving 
structural or mechanical systems; chemical, air and water pollution; hazardous materials; or environmental and subsurface conditions 
and information regarding the presence of pollutants at the Project site. Upon receipt of a written request from the Design-Builder, the 
Owner shall also provide surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project, aud 
a legal description of the site under the Owner's control. 

AIA Document A141-2014. Copylfght@.2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. «the American Institute of Arohlteote,""Amerlc:an lt11JtitUte of Architects," "AJA,.,. the AIA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The Amerlcan·Jnstitute of Architect$. This document was produced at 09:11 !33 ET on 01(16/2025 unrJer 16 
Order No.2114422890 which e>eplres on 02/28/2025, ls not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AfA Contraol 
Documants111 Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolatlone, ~mall doolnfo@alacontraots.com. 
Usor Nolos: (1901617716) 

60 



lnit. 

I 

§ 7 .2.3 The Owner shall promptly obtain easements, zoning variances, and legal authorizations or entitlements regarding site utilization 
where essential to the execution of the Project. 

§ 7.2.4 The Owcer shall cooperate with the Design-Builder in securing building and other permits, licenses and inspections. 

§ 7.2.5 The services, information, surveys and reports required to be provided by the Owcer under this Agreement shall be furnished at 
the Owner's expense, and except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement or elsewhere in the Design-Build Documents or to 
the extent the Owner advises the Design-Builder to the contrary in writing, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy 
and completeness thereof. fn no event shall the Design-Builder be relieved ofits responsibility to exercise proper precautions relating to 
the safe performance of the Work 

.§ 7.2,6 If the Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of a fault or defect in the Work or non-conformity with the Design-Build 
Documents, the Owner shall give prompt written notice thereof to the Design-Builder. 

§ 7;2,7 Prior to the execntlon of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder may request in writing that the Owner provide 
reasonable evidence that the Owner has made fmancial arrangements to fulfill the Owner's obligations under the Design-Build 
Dooumerits and t4e Design-Builder's Proposal. Thereafter, the Design-Builder may only request such evidence if (1) the Owcer fails to 
make payments to the Design-Builder as the Design-Build Documents require; (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract 
Sum; or (3) the Design-Builder identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owcer's ability to make payment when due. The 
Owner shall furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or the portion of the Work 
affected by a material change, After the Owcer furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not materially vary such financial arrangements 
without prior notice- to the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.2.8 Except as otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents or when direct communications have been specially authorized, 
the Owner shall communicate through the Design-Builder with persons or entitles employed or retained by the Design-Builder. 

§ 7 ,2.9 Unless require4 by the Design-Build Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the Owner shall, upon request from the 
Design-Builder, furnish the servlces of geotechnical engineers or other consultants for investigation of subsurface, air and water 
conditions when such services are reasonably necessary to properly carry out the design services furnished by the Design-Builder. In 
such event, the Design-BuHder shall specify the services required. Such services may include, but are not limited to, test borings, test 
pits, determinations of soil bearing value.s, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, ground corrosion and resistivity tests, 
and necessary operations for antioiputing subsoil conditions. The services of geoteohnical engineer(s) or other consultants shall inolude 
preparation and submission of all appropriate reports and professional recommendations, 

§ 7.2. 10 The Ownet shail purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit B. 

§ 7 .3 llubmlttals 
§ .7.3.1 The Owner shall review ·and approve or take other appropriate action on Submittals. Review of Submittals is not conducted for 
the pur:pose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details, such as dimensions and quantities; or for substantiating 
Jnstruolions for installation or performance of equipment or systems; or for determining that the Submittals are in conformance with the 
Deslgn•BuildDocuments, all of which remain the responsibility of the Design-Builder as required by the Design-Build Documents. The 
Owner's action will be taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Owner or, in the absence of an approved 
subrriittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Owcer'sjudgrnentto permit adequate review, The 
Owner's review of Submittals shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligations under Sections 3.1.11, 3, 1.12, and 5.2.3. The 
Owner's review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Owner, of any 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. The Owner's approval ofa specific item shall not indicate approval 
of an assembly of which the item is a component, 

§ 7.3.2 Upon review of the Submittals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owcer shall notify the Design-Builder of any 
non-conformance with the Design-Build Documents the Owner discovers, 

§ 7.4 Visits to the site by the Owner shall not be construed to create an obligation on the part of the Owner to make on-site inspections to 
check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Owner shall neither have control over or charge of, nor be responsible for, the 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the 
Work, because these are solely the Design-Builder's rights and responsibilities under the Design-Build Documents. 

AJA Document A 141-2014. Copyrlght@2004 end 2014. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architeats,lf "American Institute of Archltects1" "AJA, "the AlA 
Logo, and 11AlA Contra cit Documents" are trademarks ofThe American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:11 :33 ET on 01/18/2025 under 17 
Order No.2114422690 whlch expires on 02/28/2026, Is not for re.sale, Is licensed for one--tlme use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA coniract 
Documenta@Tarms o1 Sarv!ca. To report copyright vlolatlons, e-mall doclnfo@alacontracts.com. • 
User Notes: (1901017716) 

61 



lnlt, 

§ 7 .5 The Owner shall not be responsible for the Design-Builder's failure to perfonn the Work in accordance with the requirements of 
the Design-Build Documents. The Owner shall not have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of 
the Work for the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.6 The Owner has the authority to reject Work that does not confonn to the Design-Build Doownents. The Owner shall have authority 
to require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Section 15.5,2, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or 
completed. However, neither this authority of the Owner nor a decision made ln good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such 
authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Owner to the Design-Builder, the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, material 
and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 7.7 The Owner shall detennine the dste or dates of Substantial Completion in accordance with Section 9.8 and the date of final 
completion in aecordsnce with Section 9.10. 

§ 1.8 Own~r's Rlghfto Stop Work 
If the Design'Builder fails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Docwnents as required 
by Section I L2 or persistently fails to carry ont Work in accordance with the Design-Build Docwnents, the Owner may issue a written 
order to the.Design-Builder to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the 
right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the 
Design-Builder or. any_othet person or entity, except to the eKlent required by Section 5.13.1.3. 

§ 7.!) Owner's Right to Carry Out the Work 
If tbe Design-Builder defllults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Docwnents and fllils within a 
ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correotion of such default or neglect with 
diligence. and prompt;ness, th~ Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, correct such deficiencies. In such 
case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from payments then or thereafter due the Design-Builder the reasonable 
cost of correcting such deficle_noies. If payments then or thereafter due the Design-Builder are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the 
Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the Owner. 

ARTICLE' 8 TIME 
§ 8.1 Progress and Completion 
§ 8.1.1 TlmeJhnits stated 111 the Design-Build Docwnents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Design-Build Amendment 
the Design-Builder confirms that the. Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work. 

§ 8.1.2 The D.eslgn-Builder shall not, eKcept by agreement of the Owner in writing, commence the Work prior to the effective date of 
insurance, other than property insurance, required by this Contract, The Contract Time shall not be adjusted as a result of the 
Design-Builder's failure to obtain insurance required under this Contract, 

§ 8.1.3 The Design-Builder shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion within the 
Contract Time. 

§ 8.2 Delays .and ·Extensions of Time 
§ 8.2.1 If the Design-Builder:is delayed at any time in tbe commencement or progress of the Work by an act or neglect of the Owner or 
of a consnltant or separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by changes ordered in the Work by the Owner; or by labor disputes, 
fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or other causes beyond the Design-Builder's control; or by delay authorized by 
the. Owner pending mei;liation snd binding dispote resolution or by other causes that the Owner determines may justify delay, then the 
Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order for snch reasonable time as the Owner may detennine. 

§. 8.2,2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 14. 

§ 8,2.3 This Section 8,2 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the Design-Build 
Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION 
§ 9.1 Contract Sum 
The Contract Swn is stated in the Design-Build Amendment. 

AIA DooumentA141-2014. Oopyrlght@2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. ~rhe American Institute of Architects/' ~American lns11tute of Architects, n AA\A," the AIA 
Logo, and ~AJA Contract Documerits" sre trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. 1'h1s document was produced at OQ:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 18 
Order No.2114422690 whloh explres on 02/28/2025, Is not for resale, ls lleansad forona-tlme uss onlyi and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract 
boouments® Terms of Service. To report copyright vlotatlons, e-mall docinfo@alacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

62 



lnlt. 

I 

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values 
Where the Contract Sum is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder, prior to the first Application 
for Payment after execution of the Design-Build Amendment shall submit to the Owner a schedule of values allocating the entire 
Contract Sum to the various portions of the Work and prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as 
the Owner may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Owner, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Design-Builder's 
Applications for Payment. 

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment 
§ 9.3.1 At least ten days qefore the date established for each progress payment, the Design-Builder shall submit to the Owner an itemized 
Application for Payment for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if required, and snpported by data 
sub.stantiating the Design-Builder's right to payment as the Owner may require, such as copies of requisitions from the Architect, 
Consultants, ·contractors, and material suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.3.1.1 A.s provided in Section 6,3,9, Applications for Payment may include requests for payment on account of changes in the Work 
that have been prop~rly authorized by Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the Owner, but not yet included in Change 
Orders. 

§ 9.3. 1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the Design-Builder does 
not .intend to pay the Architect, Consnltant, Contractor, material supplier, or other persons or entities providing servloes or work for the 
De.sign-Builder, unless such Work has been performed by others whom the Design-Builder intends to pay. 

§ 9.3.2 Unless oth~rwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, payments shall be made for services provided as well as materials 
and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance by the Owner, 
payment may Jilrnilarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing, Payment for 
materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon compliance by the Design-Builder with procedures 
satisfaclol}' to.the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's interest, and 
shall include the. costs of applicable insurance, storage and transportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored off the site. 

§ 9.3.3 The Design-Builder warrants that title to all Work, other than Instruments of Service, covered by an Application for Payment will 
pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. The Design-Builder further warrants that, upon submittal of an Application for 
Payment, all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to the 
best of the Design-J3uilder's knowledge, information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances in 
favor of the Design-Builder, Archi\e.ct, Consultants, Contractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities entitled to make a claim 
by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work. 

§ 9,4 Certificates for Payment 
The Owner shall, within seven days after receipt of the Design-Builder's Application for Payment, issue to the Design-Builder a 
Certificate for Payment indicating the amount the Owner determines is properly due, and notify the Design-Builder in writing of the 
Owner's reasons forwithhtilding certification in whole or in part as provided in Section 9.5.1. 

§ 9.5 . Decisions to Withhold Certlflcatlon 
§ 9.5.1 The Owner may )Vilhhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the Owner 
due to the Owner's determination that the Work hss not progressed to the point indicated in the Design-Builder's Application for 
Payment, or the quality of the Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents, If the Owner is unable to certify payment in 
the amount of tho Application, the Owner will notify the Design-Builder as provided in Section 9 .4, lf the Design-Builder and Owner 
calinot agree on a xevised amount, the Owner will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount that the Owner deems to be 
due and owing, The Owner may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence, may nullify 
the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued to such extent as may be necessary to protect the Owner from loss for 
which the Design,Builder is responsible because of 

, 1 defective Work, including design and construction, not remedied; 
.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security acceptable to the 

Owner is provided by the Design,Builder; 
.3 • failure of the Design-Builder to make payments properly to the Architect, Consultants, Contractors or others, for services, 

labor, materials or equipment; 
.4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum; 
.5 damage lo the Owner or a separate contractor; 

AIA DocumentA141 ~2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2.014. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," dAmerloan JnsUtute or Architects," '¼IA,"fhe AJA 
Logo, and ~ArA Contract Docurnents'1 are tradernarl<s of The American Institute of Arohltects. This document was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 19 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/2S/2025, is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documen1s® Terms of Service, To report copyrii:iht violaflons, e~malr docinfo@aiacontraots.com. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

63 



lnlt. 

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid balance would not 
be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or 

,7 repeated failure to carry out the Work ln accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ • 9.5.2 When the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts previously witbheld. 

§ 9.5.3 If the Owner withholds certification for payment under Section 9 ,5, 1,3, the Owner may, at its sole option, issue joint checks to 
the Design-Builder and to the Arohitect or any Consultants, Contractor, material or equipment suppliers, or other persons or entities 
providing services or work for the Design-Builder to whom the Design-Builder failed to make payment for Work properly performed or 
material or equipment suitably delivered . 

. § 9.6 Progress Payments • 
§ 9.6.1 After the Owner has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the marmer and within the time provided 
in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9,6,2 The Design-Builder shall pay each Arohitect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity provldiog services or work for 
the Design-Builder no later than the time period required by applicable law, but in no event more than seven days after receipt of 
payment from the Owner the am01mt to which the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity provldiog services or 
WQrk for the Design-Builder is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the Design-Builder on account of the 
portion of the Worl< perforliled by the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, or other person .or entity. The Design-Builder shall, by 
appropriate agreement with each Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing services or work for the 

. Design-Builder, require each Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing services or work. for the 
Design-Builder to make payments to subconsultants and subcontractors in a similar manner. 

§ 9.6.3 The Owner will, on request and if practicable, ftirnish to the Architect, a Consultant, Contractor, or other person or entity 
ptoviding. services or work for the Design-Builder, information regarding percentages of completion or amounts applied for by the 
Design-Builder and action taken thereon by the Owner on account of portions of the Work done by such Architect, Consultant, 
Contractor' pr other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder. 

§ 9 ... 6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Design-Builder that the Design-Builder has properly paid the 
Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, amounts paid by tl1e 

. Owner to the Design-Builder for the Work, If the Design-Builder fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have 
the :right to contact the Architect, Qonsultants, and Contractors to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. The Owner shall have 
no obligation to pay or to see to the payment of money to a Consultant or Contractor, except as may otherwise be required by law. 

§ 9.6,5 Design-Builder payments to material and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a marmer similar to that provided in 
Sections 9.6.2, 9;6,3 and 9.6,4, 

§' 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the Owner shall not 
constitute acceptance of Work not in accordsnoe with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.6,7 Unles~ tho Design-Builder provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum, payments received 
by' the Design-Builder for Work properly performed by the Architect, Consultants, Contractors and other person or entity providing 
services or work for the Design-Builder, shall be held by the Design-Builder for the Architect and those Consultants, Contractors, or 
other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained 
herein shall .require money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Design-Builder, shall create any 
fiduciary liability or tort liability on the part of the Design-Builder for breach of trust or shall entitle any person or entity to an award of 
punitive damages against the Design-Builder for breach of the requirements of this provision. 

§ 9,7 Failure of Payment 
Ifihe Owner does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Design-Builder, within the time required by the 
Design-Build Documents, then the Design-Builder may, upon seven additional days' written notice to the Owner, stop the Work until 
payment of the. amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be 
increased by the amount of the Design-Builder's reasonable costs of shut-down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the 
Design-Build Documents. 

AIA DocumentA141-2014, Copyrlght@2004 and 2014, All rights reaetved. "The American Institute of Archlteots,"uAmerlcan fnstllute of Architects,~ ~AIA/'theAIA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract OocumentsH are tradematka of The American Institute of Architects, This document was produced at 09:11 :33 Er on 01/16/2025 under 20 
Order No.2114422890 which axplres on 02/28/2025, is not for resale, Is lloensed for one-time use only, and may only b!:i used In accotdance With the AIA Contract 
Documents@Terms of Service. To reporl copyright violations, e"mall doclnfo@alacontracta.com, 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

64 



lnlt. 

I 

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion 
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is sufficiently 
complete in accordance with the Design-Build Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for its intended use. The 
date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Owner in accordance with this Section 9.8. 

§ 9,8,2 When the Design-Builder considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept separately, is 
substantially complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit to the Owner a comprehensive list ofltems to be completed or 
oerrected prior to final payment, Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the responsibility of the Design-Builder to complete 
all Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ • 9,8.3 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder's list, the Owner shall make an inspection to determine whether the Work or designated 
portion thereof.is substantially complete, If the Owner's inspection discloses any item, whether or not included on the Design-Builder's 
list, which is no! sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work 
or designated portion 'thereof for its intended use, the Design-Builder shall, before issoance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, 
complete or correct such item upon notification by the Owner. In such case, the Design-Builder shall then submit a request for another 
inspection by the Owner to determine Substantial Completion. 

§ 9,8,4 Prior to issuance. of the Certificate of Substantial Completion under Section 9.8.5, the Owner and Design-Builder shall discuss 
and then determine the parties' obligations to obtain and maintain property insurance following issuance of the Certificate of Substantial 
Cornpletion, 

§ 9.8.5 When the Work oi designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Design-Builder will prepare for the Owner's 
signature a Certificate of Su_bstantial Completion that shall, upon the Owner's signature, establish the date of Substantial Completion; 
establish responsibilities of the Owner and Design-Builder for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; 
and fix the time within which the Design-Builder shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate, Warranties required by 
the Design-Build Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless 
otherwise provided in the Certif)cate of Substantial Completion. 

§ 9,8.6 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted by the Design-Builder to the Owner for written acceptance of 
responsibilities assigned to it in the Certificate, Upon the Owner's acceptance, and consent of surety, if any, the Owner shall make 
payment ofretainageapplyhtg to the Work or designated portion thereof. Payment shall be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in 
accordance with the requiJ:emeitts of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use 
§ 9,9. I The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when such portion is 
-designated by separate agreement with the Design-Builder, provided such occupancy or use is consented to, by endorsement or 
otherwise, by the insurer providing property insurance and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project, Such 
partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the portion Is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Design-Builder 
have accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, 
utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of the Work and 
commencement of warranties required by the Des!gn"Bulld Documents. When the Design-Builder considers a portion substantially 
complete, the Design-Builder .shall prepare and submit a list to the Owner as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the 
Design-Builder to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. 'The stage of the progress of the Work shall be 
determined by written agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. 

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner and Design-Builder shall jointly inspect the area to be occupied or 
portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 

§ 9.9,3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute acceptance of 
Work not complying with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.10 .Final Completion and Final Payment 
§ 9.10.1 Upon r,eceipt of the Design"Bui!der's written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt 
of a final Application for Payment, the Owner will promptly make such inspection. When the Owner finds the Work acceptable under 
the Design-Build Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Owner will, subject to Section 9.10.2, promptly issue a final 
Certificate for Payment. 

AfA □ooumentA141-2014, Copydght@2004 and 2014. All rlghts reserved. "The American Institute of Arohlteols," "American lnstltute of Aroh1taots,"uAIA," the AIA 
Logo, and "AIA Contraot Documents" are trademark's of The Amerlcan Institute of Archlteots. This document was produced at 09:11 :33 Er on 01/18/2026 under 21 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025, Is not for resaler Js lloensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In acoordanee with the AIA Contract 
Documents!> Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-.mall doclnfo@alaaontracts.com. 
User Natea: (1901617716) 

65 



lnlt. 

I 

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Design-Builder submits to the Owner 
(1) au affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the Work, for which the Owner or 
the Owner's property might be responsible or encumbered, (less amounts withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) 
a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Design-Build Documents to remain in force after fmal payment is currently in 
effe.ct, (3) a written statement that the Design-Builder knows of no substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover 
the period required by the Design-Build Documents, ( 4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) as-constructed record copy of the 
Construction Documents marked to indicate field changes and selections made during construction, (6) manufacturer's warranties, 
product data, and maintenanoe and operations manuals, and (7) if required by the Owner, other data establishing payment or satisfaction 
of 9bligations, such as receipts, or releases and waivers of liens, olsims, security interests, or encumbrances, arising out of the Contract, 
to the extent and in suoh form as may be desiguated by the Owner. If an Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or other person or entity 
providing servfoes or work for the Design-Builder, refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Desigu-Buildermay 
furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances. If such 
liens, claims, security Jutei'ests, or encumbrances remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the Design-Builder shall refund to the 
Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, 
including all costs and reasona\,le attorneys' fees. 

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof!s materially delayed through no fault of the 
Design-Builder or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, the Owner shall, upon application by the Design-Builder, 
and without terminating the Contract, make paymeot of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the 
remaining balance' for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipuiated in the Desigu-Bulld Documeots, and if 
ponds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and 
accllpted shall be submitted by the Design-Builder to the Owner prior to issuance of payment. Such payment shall be made under terms 
and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims. 

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Clsims by the Owner except those arising from 
.1 liens, Claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled; 
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents; or 
,3 terms of speciiifwarranties required by the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.10.5 AcceJltano<> of final payment by the Desigu-Builder shall constitute a waiver of claims by the Design-Builder except those 
previously made in wrJti.ng lll!d identified by the Design-Builder as unsettled at the time of final Application for Payment. 

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs 
The Desigu-Builder shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection 
With the performance of the Contract. 

§ 10,2 Safety of Persons and Property 
§ • 10.2.1 The llesign~Builder shall b.eresponsible for precautions for the safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or 
loss to 

.1 employees on .the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; 
,2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, under care, 

custody or control of the Design-Builder or the Architect, Consultants, or Contractors, or other person or entity providing 
services or work for the Design-Builder; and • 

,3 othe, property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, or structures and 
utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction. 

§ 10.2.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with, and give notices required by, applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and 
· regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or 
loss, • 

§ 10.2,3 The Design-Builder shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Contract, 
reas.onable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards, promulgating safety 
regulations, and notily owners and nsers of adjacent sites and utilities of the safeguards and protections. 

AIA DocumentA141-2014. Copyrlght@2004 and :2014, All rights reserved. "TheAmerk:an Institute of Arohltects," "American Jns11tuta of Archltecte/ ''AIA,"the AIA 
Logo, and gAIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The America11 lnslllute of Architects. Thia document waa produoed at 09;11 :33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 22 
Order No,2114422890 which expires on 02/28/20261 ls not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only ba used In seoordance wlth the AJA Contract 
Documents& Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, effmaU doclnfo@alaoontracts,com, 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

66 



lnit. 

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods, are necessary fur execution 
of the Work, the Design-Builder shall exercise utmost care, and carry on such activities under supervision of properly qualified 
personnel, 

§ 10.2.5 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured uuderproperty insurance 
required by the Design-Build Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1,2 and 10,2, 1.3, caused in whole or in part by the 
Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, orby anyone for 
whose acts they may be liable and for which the Design-Builder ls responsible under Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3; except damage or 
loss attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Owner, or by anyone for whose acts 
tb.e Owner may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Design-Builder. The foregoing obligations of the 
Design-Builder are in addition to the Design-Builder's obligations under Section 3.1.14. 

§ 10.2.6 The Design-Builqer shall designate a responsible member of the Design-Builder's organization, at the site, whose duty shall be 
the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Design-Builder's superintendent unless otherwise designated by the Design-Builder 
in writing to the Owner. 

§ 10.2,7 The Design-Builder shallnotpennit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or create an unsafe 
condition. 

§ 10,2.8 Injury or l)amage to Person or Property. If the Owner or Design-Builder suffers injury or damage to person or property because 
of all act or omission of.the other, or of others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, written notice of the injury or damage, 
whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall 
provide sufficient detail to en.able the other party to investigate the matter. 

§ 10.3 Hazardo.us Materials 
§ 10.3.1 The Design-Builder is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Design-Build Documents regarding 

. hazardous materials. If the Design-Builder encounters a hazardous material or substance not addressed in the Design-Build Documents 
and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily injury or death to persons resulting from a material or 
substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polychlorinated blphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Design-Builder, the 
Desig11-Builder shall, upon recognizing the condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and report the condition to the Owner 
ln writing. 

§ 10.3,2 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder's written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify the 
pre.sence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Design-Builder and, in the event such material or substance is found to 
be present, to cau.se it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall furnish in 
writing to the Desigri;Builder the names and qualifications of persons or entities who are to perfonn tests verifying the presence or 
absence of such material or substance or who are to perfonn the task of removal or safe oontaiument of such material or substance. Tb.e 
Design-Builder will promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not the Design-Builder has reasonable objection to the 
persons or entities proposed by the Owner. If the Design-Builder has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the Owner, the 
Owner shall propose another to whom the Design-Builder has no reasonable objection. When the material or substance has been 
rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the Owner and Design-Builder. By Change Order, 
the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall beJncreased in the amount of the Design-Builder's 
reasonable additional costs of shut-down, delay and start-up. 

§ 10.3.3 To·the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold hannless the Design-Builder, the Architect, 
Consultants, and Contractors, alld employees of any of them, from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not 
limited to attomeys' fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work in the affected area, if in fact the material or 
substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that 
such claim,damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily iajury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to, or destruction of, tangible 
property ( other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense is due to the fault or negligence of the party 

• seeking indenmity, 

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Design-Builder brings to the site 
unless such materials or substances are required by the Owner's Criteria. The Owner shall be responsible for materials or substances 
required by the Owner's Criteria, except to the extent of the Design-Builder's fault or negligence in the use and handling of such 
materials or substances. 

AIA Document A 141-2014, CopyriE1ht@2004 and 2014. All rights reserved, "The-American lnstltute of Architects," uAmer!can Institute of Architects,• aAIA,"the AlA 
Logo, and "AIA Contraot Documents" ara trademarks ofThe American Institute of Architects, This document was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 23 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/2812025, Is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only he used 111 accordance wltll the AIA Contract 
Documents@Terrns of servlee, To report copyright vlohitlorn;, e-mall doclnfo@alacontracts.com. • • 
User Notes, (1901017716) 

67 



!nit. 

I 

§ 10.3.5 The Design-Builder shall indemnify the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of a material or 
substance the Design-Builder brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the Design-Builder fails to perform its obligations 
imder Section 10,3, 1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due to the Owner's fault or negligence, 

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder is held liable by a government agency for the cost 
ofrernediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason ofperformlog Work as required by the Design-Build Documents, 
the Owner shall lndemuify the Design-Builder for all cost and expense thereby incurred. 

§ 10,4 Emergencies 
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Design-Builder shall act, at the Design-Builder's discretion, to prevent 
threatened damage, injury or loss. 

ARTICLE 11 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
§ 11.1 Uncovering of Work 
The Owner may requesqo exmnine a portion of the Work that the Design-Builder has covered to determine if the Work has been 
performed in acoordanoe with the Design-Build Documents. If such Work is in accordance with the Design-Build Documents, the 
Owner and Design'Builder shall execute a Change Order to adjust the Contract Time and Contract Sum, as appropriate, If such Work is 
not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents, the costs of uncovering and correcting the Work shall be at the Design-Builder's 
expense and the Design-Builder shall not be entitled to a change in the Contract Time unless the condition was caused by the Owner or 
a sep!ll'l\te contractor in which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs and the Contract Time will be adjusted as 
appropriate. 

§ 11.2 Correction of Work 
§ 11.2.1 Before or After Substantial Completlon. The Design-Builder shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Owner or failing to 
conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, whether discovered before or after Substantial Completiou and whether or 
not fabricated, iµstalled or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of 
uncovering and replacement, and compensation for any design consultant employed by the Owner whose expenses and compensation 
were made necessary thereby, shall be at the Design-Builder's expense. 

§ 11.2.2 After Substantial Completion 
§ 1 U.2.1 Jn addition to the Design-Builder's obligations under Section 3.1.12, if, within one year after the date of Substantial 
Cqmpletion of the·w_ork: or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties established under Section 9.9.1, 
or by terms of an applicable special wartanty required by the Design-Build Documents, any of the Work is found not to be in accordance 
with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from 
the Owner lo. do ·so unless the Owner has previously given the Design-Builder a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall 
give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition. During the one-year period for correction of the Work, if the Owner fails to 
tiotify the Design-Builder and give the Design-Builder an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require 
correction by the Design-Builder and to make a claim for breach of warranty. Ifthe Design-Builder fails to correct nonconforming Work 
within a re_asonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the Owner, the Owner may correct it in accordance with 
Section 7.9, 

§ 11 .. 2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended wlth respect to portions of Work first performed after 
Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual completion of that portion of the Work. 

§ 11.2.2,3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the Design-Builder 
pursuant to.this Se<i\ion 11.2. 

§ 11.2.3 The Design-Builder shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the requirements of the 
Design-Build Documents and are neither corrected by the Design-Builder nor accepted by the Owner. 

§ 11.2,4 The Design-Builder shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or separate contractors, 
whether Gompl~ted or partially completed, caused by the Design-Builder's correction or removal of Work that is not in accordance with 
the requirements _of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 11.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 11.2 shall be construed to establish a period oflimitation with respect to other obligations the 
Design.Builder has under the Design-Build Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for correction of Work as descn'bed in 
Section 11.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Design-Builder to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within 

AIADocument A141-2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2014, All rights reserved. ''TheAmerloan lnslltufe of Archltectst "Atl'lerican rnstltuta of Atchltactst "AIA,"the AIA 
Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American lnstltute of Architects. Thie document was produced at 09:11:33 St on 01/16/2025 under 24 
Otdar No,211442:2690 which expires on 02/28/2026, Is not ror resale, Is licensed for one~tlme use only, and m~y only bs uaad ln accordance with the AIA contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolaUons, e~mall doclnfo@alacon1racts.com. 
User Noles: • (1901617716) 

68 



lnlt. 

I 

which the obligation to comply with the Design-Build Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which 
proceedings may be commenced to estsblish the Design-Builder's liability with respect to the Design-Builder's obligations other than 
specifically to correct the Work. 

§ 11.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, the Owner may do 
so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as appropriate and equitsble, Such 
adjustment shall be effected whether or not fmal payment has been made, 

ARTICLE 12 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 12.1 Drawings, specifications, and other documents fumished by the Design-Builder, including those in electronic form, are 
lnstnunents ·or S~ice:The Design-Builder, and the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and any other person or entity providing 
services or work for any of them, shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective Instroments of Service, including the 
Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, ststutory and other reserved rights, including copyrights, Submission or 
distribution· of Instruments of Service to meet official regulatory requirements, or for similar purposes in connection with the Project, is 
not to be cons.trued as publication in derogation of the reserved rights of the Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and 
Contractors, and any other person or entity providing services or work for any of them. 

§ 12.2 The Design-Builder and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the transmitting 
party is the copyright owner of such information or has pennission from the copyright owner to transmit such information for its use on 
the Project. 

§ 12.3 Upon execution of the Agreement, the Design-Builder grants to the Owner a limited, irrevocable and non-exclusive license to use 
the Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, 
provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when due, under the Design-Build 
Pocuments,. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to authorize its consultants and separate contractors to reproduce 
applicable portions of the Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If 
the Design-Buil4er rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 13.1.4 or 13.2.1 the license granted in this 
Section 12,3 shall terminate. 

§ 12.3.1 The Deslgn~Builder shall obtain non-exclusive licenses from the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, that will allow the 
Design-Builder to satisfy its obligations to the Owner under this Article 12. The Design-Builder's licenses from the Architect and its 
Consultants and Contractors shall also allow the Owner, in the event this Agreement is terminated for any reason other than the default of 
the. Owner or in the event the Design_sBuilder's Architect, Consultants, or Contractors terminate their agreements with the 
Design-Builder for cause, to obtain a limited, irrevocable and non-exclusive license solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, 
usii;ig, maintaining, alterlng and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner (1) agrees to pay to the Architect, Consultant or 
Col'\tractor all amounts due, and (2) provide the Architect, Consultsnt or Contractor with the Owner's written agreement to indemuify 
and hold harmless the ArohitQct, Consultsnt or Contractor from all costs aud expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims 
arid cimses ofactlon asserted by-any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner's alteration or use 
of the Instruments of Service. 

§ 12.3,2 In the event the Owner alters the Instruments of Service without the author's written authorization or uses the Instruments of 
Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of Service, the Owner releases the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, 
Contractors and .any other person or entity providing services or work for any of them, from all claims and causes of action arising from 
or related to such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indenmify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, 
Architect, Consultants, Contractors and any other person or entity providing services or work for any of them, from all costs and 
ei<penses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such 
costs and expenses arise from the Owner's alteration or use of the Instruments of Service under this Section 12,3.2. The terms of this 
Section 12.3.2 shall not apply if the Owner rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Sections 13, 1.4 or 13.2.2. 

ARTICLE 13 TEijMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 13.1 Termination or Suspension Prior to Execution of the Oesign,lluild Amendment 
§ 13.1.1 If the.Owner fails to milke payments to the Design-Builder for Work prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment in 
accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be considered substsntial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the 
Design-Builder's option, cause for suspension of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Design-Builder elects to suspend 
the Work, the Design-Builder shall give seven days' written notice to the Owner before suspending the Work. In the event of a 
suspension of the Work, the Design-Builder shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused by the suspension of the 

AJA DocumentA141-2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2014, AU rights reserved, "'The American Institute of Arohltacts,n..Amerlcan Institute of Arc:hltecte/ HAJA,"ihe AIA 
Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are tradetnarlcs of The Atnerlcan Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 25 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2026, Is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only1 and may cmly be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents• Terms of Servlce, To report copyright vlolaUons, e--maiJ dooJnfo@alacontracts.com. 
Usor Notos: (1901617716) 

69 



lnlt. 

Work. Befure resuming the Work, the Design-Builder shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses incurred in the 
interruption and resumption of the Design-Builder's Work. The Design-Builder's compensation for, and time to complete, the remaining 
Work shall be equitsbly adjusted, 

§. 13.1.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for the Work performed prior to notice of such 
suspeusion. When the Project is resumed, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the intermption and 
resumption of the Design-Builder's Work, The Design-Builder's compensation for, and time to complete, the remaining Work shall be 
equitsbly adjusted. 

§ 13.1.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the Design-Builder, the 
Design-Builder may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days' written notice. 

§ 13. 1.4 Ei.iher party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice should the other party fail substantially 
to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 

§ 13.1.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Design-Builder for the Owner's 
convenience and without cause, 

§ 13.1,6 fu ·the .event of termination not the fault of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for Work performed 
prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and any other expenses directly attributsble to termination forwhioh 
the. Design-Builder is not otherwise compensated. In no event shall the Design-Builder's compeusation under this Section 13.1.6 be 
greater than the compensation set forth in Section 2.1. 

§ 13.2 Termlnatlon or Suspension Following Execution of the Design-Build Amendment 
§ 13.2.1 Termination by the Deslgn,Bullder 
§ 13.2. 1, 1 The Design-Builder may terminate the Coutract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days through no act or 
fault of the Design,.Bullder, the Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities 
performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Design-Builder, for any of the following reasons: 

.1 • Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be stopped; 

.2 An act of government, such as a declaratiou of national emergency that requires all Work to be stopped; 

.3 Because the Owner has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Design-Builder of the reason for 
withholding certification as provided in Sectiou 9.S.1, or because the Owner has not made payment on a Certificate for 
Payment within the time stated in the Design-Build Documents; or 

.4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Design-Builder promptly, upon the Design-Builder's request, reasonable evidence 
as required by Section 7.2,7. 

§ 13.2. 1.2 The Design-Builder may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, 
a Contractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect 
contract with the Design-Builder, repeated suspensions, delays or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in 
Section 13.2.3 constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in 
any 365-day period, whichever is less. 

§ 13.2.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 13 ,2.1.1 or 13.2.1.2 exists, the Design-Builder may, upon seven days' written notice 
to the Owner, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, including reasonable overhead and profit, 
costs incurred by.reason of such termination, and damages. 

§ 13.2.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through uo act or fault of the Design-Builder or any other persons or 
entities performing portions of the Work under coutract with the Design-Builder because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the 
Owner's obligations under the Design-Build Documents with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the 
Design-Builder may, upon seven additional days' written notice to the Owner, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as 
provided in S~ction 13.2.1.3. 

§ 13.2.2 Termination by the Owner For Cause 
§ 13.2.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Design-Builder 

.1 fails to submit the Proposal by the date required by this Agreement, or ifno date is indicated, within a reasonable time 
consistent with the date of Substsotial Completion; 

AIA DocumentA141-2014, Copyright ©2004 and 2014. All tlghts reserved. "The Ametfcah Institute of An.hitects,""Amerlcan Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA 
Logo, and ~AIA Contract DooumentsH are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects, lhls document was prQduood at 09:11 :33 ET cm 01/16/2025 under 26 
Order No.2114422690 which expires Oh 02/2B/2025, II> 11ot for resale, Is llcenaed fot on1J-time use only, and may only be used ln accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents" Terms of Seivlce. To report copyrlght vlolatlons1 ()-mall doc1nfo@alacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

70 



lnit. 

.2 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply an Architect, or enough properly skilled Consultants, Contractors, or workers or 
proper materials; 

.3 fails to make payment to the Architect, Consultants, or Contractors fur services, materials or labor in accordance with 
their respective agreements with the Design-Builder; 

;4 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, mies and regulations, or lawful orders of a public 
authority; or 

.5 is otherwise guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 13.2.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Ownerand after 
giving the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder's surety, if any, seven days' written notice, terminate employment of the 
Design-Builder and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety: 

.1 Exclude the Design-Bu!lder from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction 
equipment attd machinery thereon owned by the Design-Builder; 

.2 Accept assignment of the Architect, Consultant and Contractor agreements pursuant to Section 3.1.15; and 
,3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request of the 

Design-Builder, the Owner shall :furnish to the Design-Builder a detailed accounting of the costs incurred by the Owner in 
finishing tho Work. 

§ 13,2.2,3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 13.2.2.1, the Design-Builder shall not be 
entitled to receive further payinent until the Work is fmished. 

§ 13,2.2,4 If the unpaid 1/alance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work and other damages incurred by the Owner and 
not expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Design-Builder. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, the 
Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the Owner. The obligation for such payments shall survive termination of the Contract. 

§ 13.2.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 13.2.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Design-Builder in writing to suspend, delay orinterrupt the Work in whole or in part 
for such period of time as the Owner may dotennine. 

§ 13.2.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by suspension, delay or 
interi:uption as. described in Section 13.2.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit No adjustment shall be made to the 
extent 

.1 that performance is, \vas 1ir would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause for which tho 
Design-Builder is respoJJsible; or 

• .2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract. 

§ 13,2.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 13.2.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract fur the Owner's convenience and without cause. 

§ 13.2.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner's convenience, the Design-Builder shall 
.1 .cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; 
.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and, 
.3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, terminate all 

existing Project agreements, including agreements with the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and purchase orders, and 
enter into no further Project agreements and purchase orders. 

§ 13.2.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner's convenience, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to receive payment for Work 
executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and profit on the Work not executed. 

ARTICLE 14 CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOWTION 
§ 14.1 Claims 
§ 14.1, 1 Definition. A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, or other relief 
with respect to.1:)te terms of the Contract. Tho term "Claim" also includes other disputes and matters in question between the Owner and 
Design-Builder arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the 
Claim. 

AIA DooumehtA141-2014. Copyrlght@2004 at1d 2014. All rli;1hts rasetvad, ''The American lnstltute of Architects, n "American Institute of Archlteots," 11AIA,"the AJA 
Logo, and "AJA Contraot Documents" are trademarks of lhe American Institute of Architects, This document wes produced at 09!11:33 ET on 0f/16/2025 urider 27 
Order No,2114422690 which a>i:plres ot1 02/28/2025, I~ not far resale., Is llcenaed for one-time use only, and may only be -used fn accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documenls® ierms of SeNlce. lo report eopyrlgh.t vlolatlons, a-mall doclnfo@alacontracts.com, 
User Noles: (1901817716) 

71 



§ 14.1.2 Time Limits on Cl alms. The Owner and Design-Builder shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether Jn contract, tort, 
breach of warranty or otherwise, against the other, arislng out of or related to the Contract in accordance with the requirements of the 
binding ruspute resolution method selected in Section 1.3, withln the time period specified by applicable law, hut in any case not more 
than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Design-Builder waive all claims and causes of action 
not commenced in accordance with this Section 14.1.2. 

§ 14.1.3 Notice of Clalms 
§ 14.1.3.1 Prior To Final Payment. Prior to Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Desiga-Builder must be initiated by written 
notice to the other party within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the claimant first 
reoognlzes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later. 

§ 14.1.3.2 Claims Arising After Final Payment, After Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder that have not 
otherwise been waived pursuant to Sections 9. 10.4 or 9. 10.5, must be initiated by prompt written notice to the other party. The notice 
requirement Jn Section 14, 1,3.1 and the Initial Decision requirement as a condition precedent to mediation in Section 14.2.1 shall not 
apply. • 

§ 14.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance. Ponding final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed Jn writing or as provided in 
Section 9. 7 and Article 13, the Design-Builcler shall proceed diligently with perfnrmance of the Contract and tho Owner shall continue to 
make payments in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 14.1.5 Claims for Addltlonal Cost. If the Design-Builder intends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, written notice as 
provided herein shall be given before proceeding to execute tho portion of the Work that relates to the Claim. Prior notice is not required 
for Claims relating to an ~erg ency endangering life or property arising under Seotion 10.4. 

§ 14.1.6 Claims for Additional Time 
§ 14.1.6.1 .If Ibo Doslga-Builder Jntends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as provided heroin shall be 
given. The Design-Builder's Claim shall inclnde an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on progress of tho Work. In tho case 

· of.a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary. 

§ 14, 1,6.2 If advetse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented by data 
substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period oftime, could not have been reasonably anticipated, and had an 
adverse effect on tho scheduled construction, 

§ 14.1.7 Claims for Consequential Damages 
The Desiga-Builder and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Contract. 
This mutual waiver .includes 

.1 damages incurred by the Owner forrentai expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, business and reputation, 
and for loss of m.anagemont or employee productivity or of the services of such persons; and 

.2 damages Jncurred by tho Desiga-Builder for principal office expenses including the compensation of personnel stationed 
there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit except anticipated profit arising directly from 
the Work. 

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party's tennination in accordance with 
Article 13, Nothing contained in this Section 14.1. 7 shall be deemed to preclude an award of liquidated damages, when applicable, in 
accordance with the requirements of the Desiga-Build Documents. 

§ 14.2 Initial Oeci.sian 
§ 14.2.1 An initial decision shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of all Claims between the Owner and Design-Builder 
initiated prior to the date final payment Is due, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3 and 10,4 of the Agre~ent and 
Sections B.3;2,9 and B.3 .2.10 of Exhibit B to this Agreement, unless 30 days have passed after the Claim has been initiated with no 
decision having been rendered. Unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing, tho Owner shall render the initial decision on Claims. 

§ 14.2.2 Procedure 
§ 14.2.2, 1 Claims Initiated by the Owner. If the Owner iuitiates a Claim, the Design-Builder shall provide a written response to Owner 
within tea days after receipt of the notice required under Section 14.1.3.1. Thereafter, the Owner shall render an initial decision within 
ten days of receiving the Desiga-Builder's response: (1) withdrawing the Claim in whole or in part, (2) approving the Claim in whole or 
Jn part, or (3) suggesting a compromise. 

AIA OocumentA141 ...... 2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2014, All rfghts reserved, "The American rnstttute of Archltectsi""Amerlcan Institute of Architects/ HAfA," theAIA 
Logo, and "AJA Cantr;:i.ct Doeuments~ are trademarks of The American lnsUtute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 28 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025, Is not for resale) Is llcensed for one-time use only, and may only tie used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Oocumante.~ Terms of Service. To repctt copyright vlolatrons, e-maU doo!nfo@alacontreota,oom. 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

72 



lnlt. 

§ 14,2.2,2 Claims Initiated by the Design-Bulldet. If the Design-Builder iuitiates a Claim, the Owner will talce one or more ofthe following 
actions witWn ten days after receipt of the notice required under Section 14. 1.3.1: (I) request additional supporting data, (2) render an 
initial decision rejecting the Claim in whole or in part, (3) render an initial decision approving the Claim, ( 4) suggest a compromise or 
(5) indicate that it is unable to render an initial decision because the Owner lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the 
Claim. 

§ 14.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Owner may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek information from persons with special 
knowledge or expertise who may assist the Owner in rendering a decision. The retention of such persons shall be at the Owner's expense. 

§ 14.2.4 If the Owner requests the Design-Builder to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional supporting data, the 
Design-Builder shall respond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shall either (!) provide a response on the requested 
supporting data, (2) advise the Owner when the response or supporting data will be furnished or (3) advise the Owner that no supporting 
data will he furnished. Upon receipt of the response or supporting data, if any, the Owner will either reject or approve the Claim in whole 
or in part. 

§ 14.2.5 The Owner's initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the reasons therefor; and (3) identify any change in the Contract 
Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding on the parties bnt subject to mediation and, ifthe parties fail 
to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute resolution. 

§ 14.2.6 Either party may :file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 14,2.6.1. 

§ 14.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other party file for mediation 
within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receMng the demand fails to file for mediation within the 
time required, then both. parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial 
decision. 

§ 14.2, 7 In the event of a Claim against the Design-Builder, the Owner may, but ls not obligated to, notify the surety, if any, of the nature 
and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Design-Builder's default, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify 
the surety and request the surety's assistance in resolving the controversy. 

§ 1 ~.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic's.lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in accordance with 
applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. 

§ 14.3 Medl,tlon 
§ 14.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived as provided for in 
Sections 9, 10.4, 9.10.5, and. 14.l :7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. 

§ 14.3.2 The. patties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be 
administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on 
the date of the. ,Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with 
the person or entity 'administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution 
proceedings but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, whlch shall be stayed 
pending.media ii on for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court 
order. If an arbib:ation proceeding is stayed pursuant to tWs Section 14.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the 
arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 14.3.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place where the Project 
is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement 
agreements in any court having jurisdiction. 

§ 14.4 Arbitration 
§ 14.4.1 lf the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in Section 1.3, any Claim subject to, but not 
resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration wWch, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the 
American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. 
A demand for arbitrntion shall be maqe in writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity 

AIA Document A141-2014. Copyfight@2004 and 2014. All rights reseived. "The Amari can Institute of Architects," ~American Institute of Architects/ "AIA,~ the AJA 
LQgo, and "AIA contract Dooumanta" ara trademarks of The American Institute of Arohiteots. ihls document was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 29 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025, Is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AJA Contract 
Documents9 Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolatlons, a-mall doclnfo@alacontracts.com, 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

73 



lnlt. 

administering the arbitration. The party filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that 
party on which arbitration is permitted to be demanded. 

§ 14.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation, but in no event 
shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim would be barred by the applicable 
statute of limitations or statute of repose, For statute of limitations or statute of repose purposes, receipt of a written demand for 
arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of!egal or equitable proceedings based on 
the Claim . 

. § 14.4.2 The award render~d by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered npon it in accordance with 
applicable law in any ooµrt having jurisdiction. 

§ 14.4.3 Th11 foregoing agi'.el!ment to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly consented to by 
parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof, 

§ 14,4.4 Consolidation .or Joinder 
§ 14.4,4, 1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to 
which it is a party provided that (I) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to 
be consolidated substantially involve common questions oflaw or fact, and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural 
rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 14.4.4.2 Either party, at its sole ·discretion, may include by Joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question of 
law or faot whose presence ls i:equlred if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the party sought to be joined 
consents in writing to such join<ler, Consent to arbitration involving an additional persou or entity shall not constitute consent to 
arbitrati<ln of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent. 

§ 14.4.4.3 The Owner and Design-Builder grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this Section 14.4, 
wheth<;t by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and Design-Bnilder under this 
Agieeineni. 

ARTICLE 15 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 15.1 Governing .Law 
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located except that, if the parties have selected arbitration as 
the. method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 14.4. 

§ 15.2 Successors and ·Assigns 
§ 15,2.1 The Owner and Design-Bnilder, respectively, bind themselves, their parlners, successors, assigns aud legal representatives to 
the covenant~, agreements and obligations contained in the Design-Build Documents, Except as provided in Section 15.2.2, neither party 
to the Contract sball assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make such an 
ass.igmnent without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for a]l obligations under the Contract, 

§ 15.2.2 The OWner may, without consent of the Design-Builder, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction financing for the 
Project, if the lender assumes the Owner's rights and obligations under the Design-Build Documents, The Design-Builder shall execute 
all consentll reasonably required to facilitate such assignment. 

§ 15.2,3 Jf the Ow:ner requests the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors to execute certificates, other than those 
reqnlred by Section .3.1.10, the Owner shall submit the proposed language of such certificates for review at least 14 days prior to the 
requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors to execute consents 
reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors shall execute all such 
·consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to them for review at least 14 days prior to 
execution, The Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute certificates or consents that 
would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services. 

§ 15.3 Written Notice 
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the fmn or entity, or to 
an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if delivered at, or sent by registered or certified mail or by courier service 
providing proof of delivery to, the last business address known to the party giving notice. 

AIA DooumentA141-2014. Copyrlght@2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. ''The American Institute of Architects/' KAmerlcan lns1itute of Architeots/'"AIAt1he AJA 
Lo9o, and ~AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American· Institute of Architects. 'fhls doaument was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 30 
order No,2114422690 whloh expires on 02/28/20251 Is not for resale, Is licensed for ona•tlme use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e•mall doclnfo@alacontracts.com. 
User Notes: {1901617716} 

74 



lnil, 

I 

§ 15.4 Rights and Remedln 
§ 15.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Design-Build Documents, and rights and remedies available thereunder, shall be in 
addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 

§ 15,4,2No action orfuilure to aotby the Owner or Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver ofarlght or duty afforded them under the 
Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach thereunder, except as may be 
specifically agreed in writing. 

§ 15,5 Tests and lnspecUons 
§ 15.5.1 Tests, inspeotloru, .and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Design-Build Documents and by 
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regclations or lawful orders of public authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the 
Design-Builder shall inake arrangements for snch tests, inspections and approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity 
acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The 
Design•Builder•shall give the Owner timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Owner may be 
present for such procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of (1) tests, inspections or approvals that do not become requirements until after 
bids are received.or nego.tiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals where building codes or applicable laws or 
regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Design-Builder, 

§ 15.5.Uf the Owner determines that portions of the Work require additional testing, inspection or approval not included under 
Section 15 .5.1, the Owner will instruct the Design-Builder to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection or approval by 
an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Design-Builder shall give timely notice to the Owner of when and where tests and inspections 
are to be :tl:lade S() that the Owner may be present for such procedures. Such costs, except as provided in Section 15.5.3, shall be at the 
Owner's expense, 

§ 15.5,3If snob procedures for testing, inspection or approval under Sections 15 .5.1 and 15.S.2 reveal failure of the portions of the Work 
to comply with requirements established by the Design-Build Documents, all costs made necessary by such failure shall be at the 
Design.Builder's expense. 

§. 15.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Design-Build Doowneots, be 
secured by the Design-Bullder and promptly delivered to the Owner. 

§ 1.5.5,5 If the Owner is to observe 1:ests, inspections or approvals required by the Design°Build Docwnents, the Owner will do so 
promptly and, llllhere practicable, at 1he normal place of testing. 

§ 15,5.6 Tests· or inspections conducted pursuant to the Design-Build Documents shall be made promptly to avoid unreasonable delay in 
the Work. 

§ 15.6 Confldentlal lnformaflon 
If the Owner or Design-Bullder transmits Confidential Information, the transmission of such Confidential Information constitutes a 
warranty to .the party receiving such Confidential Information that the transmitting party is authorized to transmit the Confidential 
Information. If a party receives Confidential Information, the receiving party shall keep the Confidential Information strictly 
confidential and shall not disclose it to any o1hor person or entity except as set forth in Section 15 .6.1. 

·§ 15.6.1 A party receiving Confidential Information may disclose the Confidential Information as required by law or court order, 
including a .subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity. A party receiving Confidential 
Information may also disclose the Confidential Information to its employees, consn\tant, or contractors in order to perform services or 
work solely and exclusively for the Project, provided those employees, consultants and contractors are snbject to tho restrictions on the 
disclosure and use of Confidential Information as set forth in this Contract. 

§ .15.7 Capitalization 
Terms capitallzed in the Contract include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered articles or (3) the titles of other 
documents published by the American Instltnte of Architects. 

A1A DocumentA141-2014, Copyrli;Jht® 2004 and 2014, All rights reserved. "the American Institute of Archltactsi''"Amerlcan l11st[tute of Archlteots," ''AlA,"the AJA 
Logo, and uAIA Contract Documents" -are trademarks of The American Institute of Arohltects. This document was produced at 09:11:33 Er on 01/18/2025 under 31 
Order No.2114422890 which expires on 02/28/2025, Is not for resale, Is Ileen sad for one~tlme use only, and may only be used in sccordanoe with the AIA Contract 
Documents* Tenns of Service. To rs port copyright Vlo!atlons, e-mail doc1nfo@alacon1racts.com, 
User Notes: (1901617716) 

75 



lnlt. 

§ 15.8 Interpretation 
§ 15.8.1 In the interest of brevity tho Design-Build Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all" and "any" and articles such 
as "the" and "an," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is not intended to affect the 
interpretation of either statement. 

§ 15.8~ Unless otherwise stated in the Design-Build Documents, words which have well-known technical or construction industry 
meanings are used in the Design-Build Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings. 

ARTICLE 16 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 16.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below: 

.1 AJA Document Al 41 ™--2014, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder 

.2 AJA Document A141"'--2014, Exhibit A, Design-Build Amendment, if executed 

.3 Other: 

Schedule I - division of Cost Elements 
(Paragraphs deleted) 

ExhlbitB' -179D 

This Agreement entereg. into as of the day and year first wiitten above. 

OWNER (Signature) 

Rusty Worl';Y Planning Director 
(Printed name and title) 

DESIGN-BUILDER (Signature) 

Aaron K Thomas President 
(Printed name and title) 

AIA Document A 141-2014. Copytlghl!ID 2004 and 2014. All rights reserved. "ThaAmerlcan Institute of Arcltltects,~"Amarlcan lnstltuta Of Architects,• "AIA,•the AJA 
Logo, end "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American lnatltute of Architects. Thls document was produced at 09:11:33 ET on 01/16/2025 under 32 
Order No.2114422690 which expires on 02/28/2025, la not for resale, 1s Jlcensed for onewtlme use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract 
Ooouments& Terms of Servlce. io report copyright vlolatlons, e-m~ll doclnfo@alacontracts.com. 
UssrNotes: (1901617716) 

76 














































































	Agenda Material-pt 1-2.3.2025 Town Council Meeting.pdf
	Agenda Material-pt2- 2.3.2025 Town Council Meeting

